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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be
a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the "Directors’) of BCl Group
Holdings Limited (the "Company’, together with its subsidiaries,
the "Group", "we" or "our") collectively and individually accept
full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules') for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best
of their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this
report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of Directors of the
Company, | am pleased to present the annual report of BCI
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) for the year ended
31 May 2018. At present, our Group is operating (i) two night
clubs, namely Volar and Fly (under renovation); (ii) a sports-
themed bar, namely Paper Street; (iii) an entertainment studio,
namely Maximus Studio; and (iv) three restaurants focusing
on Japanese-style dishes under the proprietary “Tiger” brand,
namely Tiger Curry Jr., Tiger San and Tiger Room.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the year ended 31 May 2018 (the “Year” or “2018"),
the Group recorded a decrease in revenue of approximately
11.3% from approximately HK$96.2 million for the year ended
31 May 2017 (the “Previous Year” or “2017") to approximately
HK$85.3 million for the year ended 31 May 2018 and recorded
an increase in loss for the year of approximately 163.6% from
approximately HK$ 9.8 million for the year ended 31 May 2017
to approximately HK$ 25.8 million for the year ended 31 May
2018. The loss was mainly attributable to (i) the decrease in
revenue generated from the Group’s clubs and entertainment
operation, (ii) an increase in advertising and marketing expenses
on the featured events, (iii) an increase in employee benefits
expenses, and (iv) an increase in other expenses in line with
our business expansion for the year ended 31 May 2018.

CLUBS AND ENTERTAINMENT OPERATION AND
RESTAURANTS OPERATIONS

Over the course of the year, we continued to strengthen our
market share in clubbing and entertainment operation by
opening an entertainment studio, namely Maximus Studio, in
the heart of Sheung Wan on 21 January 2018 and to strengthen
our market share in restaurants operation by opening a
restaurant under our “Tiger” brand, namely Tiger San on 16
December 2017 at Maritime Square Il Tsing Yi.
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PROSPECTS

To maintain our leading market players in the clubbing and
entertainment market and further strengthen our business in
restaurants operation in Hong Kong, we will continue to expand
and diversify our outlet network by establishing a sports-
themed bar and expanding our restaurant network under our
“Tiger” brand, and upgrade our club facilities. We opened a
sport-themed bar, namely Paper Street on 20 July 2018 and a
restaurant, namely Tiger Room on 15 June 2018 in the heart of
Sheung Wan.

For upgrading our club facilities, the Group shall undertake
minor renovations for our clubs on an as-needed basis
depending on the condition of our equipment and facilities.
Currently, we are in the process of upgrading and renovating Fly
and the renovation will be completed by the end of September
2018. In addition, the upgrade and renovation of Volar will
commence in or around the third quarter of 2018 to ensure that
each remains attractive to our customers.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board and the management of the Group, |
would like to express my sincere gratitude to all our staff for
their unremitting efforts during the year ended 31 May 2018
and to all shareholders for their full support. | would also like
to express my heartfelt thanks to all shareholders, investors,
customers, suppliers and business partners for their valuable
support.

Ng Shing Joe Kester
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 August 2018

Chairman’s Statement
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Financial Highlight
MBEE

For the year ended 31 May 2018, the Group's revenue was
approximately HK$85.3 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 11.3% when compared with that for the year
ended 31 May 2017

The Group recorded a loss and total comprehensive expense
for the year ended 31 May 2018 of approximately HK$25.8
million, while there was a loss and total comprehensive loss of
approximately HK$9.8 million for the year ended 31 May 2017
Excluding the non-recurring Listing expenses of approximately
HK$15.5 million for the year ended 31 May 2017 the profit and
total comprehensive income would be approximately HK$5.7
million for the year ended 31 May 2017.

The Board did not recommend payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 May 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

At present, the Group is operating (i) two night clubs, namely
Volar and Fly (under renovation); (ii) a sports-themed bar, namely
Paper Street; (iii) an entertainment studio, namely Maximus
Studio; and (iv) three restaurants focusing on Japanese-style
dishes under the proprietary “Tiger” brand, namely Tiger Curry
Jr., Tiger San and Tiger Room.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

For the year ended 31 May 2018 and up to the date of this
report, the Group had been principally engaged in the operation
of clubbing and entertainment and restaurant business in Hong
Kong.

Operation of clubbing and entertainment business

For the year ended 31 May 2018, the Group strategically
positions two clubs and an entertainment studio, namely Volar,
Fly and Maximus Studio, to cover different segments of the
night lifestyle, club and entertainment market. Volar targets
customers with strong spending power and aims to provide a
premium clubbing experience, Fly aims to appeal to the younger
white collar professionals and university students and graduates
and provide a high-end clubbing lifestyle experience, while
Maximus Studio is working to achieve a lifestyle designed by
the customer and is a place to build a greatest self. The revenue
generated from operation of clubbing and entertainment
business decreased by approximately HK$11.8 million, or
approximately 15.0%, from approximately HK$78.5 million for
the year ended 31 May 2017 to approximately HK$66.7 million
for the year ended 31 May 2018. Such decrease was mainly
due to the result of rising competition in clubbing business
and the decrease in sale of prepaid beverage packages to our
customers.

Operation of restaurant business

For the year ended 31 May 2018, the Company owned
four “Tiger” branded restaurants which aimed to provide
a contemporary Japanese dining experience in a relaxing
atmosphere for their customers. Tiger Curry, Tiger Curry & Cafe
and Tiger San are casual dining restaurants while Tiger Curry Jr.
is a quick service restaurant.

Tiger Curry was closed on 10 April 2018 due to a notice
in writing has been given by the lawyer of the landlord in
which the landlord decided to terminate the existing tenancy
agreement.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TEERESNWE DN

The Group seeks to distinguish itself from other local casual
dining and quick service restaurant concepts by creating food
menus centered on Japanese-style dishes yet at the same time
offering a variety of other Japanese dishes with broad appeal.
The revenue generated from operation of restaurant business
increased by approximately HK$0.9 million, or approximately
5.4%, from approximately HK$17.7 million for the year ended 31
May 2017 to approximately HK$18.6 million for the year ended
31 May 2018. The increase in revenue was primarily attributable
to the result of the increase by revenue contributed from Tiger
San which was opened on 16 December 2017 but partially
offset by rising competition and general downturns in the food
and beverage industry.

OUTLOOK

The food and beverage, lifestyle and entertainment industry
is always challenging, dynamic with keen competitions. The
demand for our clubbing business is highly susceptible to the
changing lifestyle trends and tastes. Operating in a competitive
business, the Group recognises a renovation would provide
an opportunity for us to update our venues, refresh our brand
image and attract customers.

Currently, we have engaged an internationally acclaimed
interior designer to design the venue of Fly and the renovation
and refurbishment of Fly was started in July 2018 and we
expect that it will be completed by September 2018. After the
renovation and refurbishment, we will be able to refresh the
image and brand of the Group, broaden the customer base and
Fly will be a more sophisticated, high-end and contemporary bar
with no dance floor, offering a variety of entertainment such as
live band show and international DJ's performance. In addition,
the renovation and refurbishment of Volar will commence in or
around the third quarter of 2018 to ensure that each remains
attractive to our customers.

To expand our market share in food and beverage, lifestyle
and entertainment industry in Hong Kong, we opened a sport-
themed bar, namely Paper Street, on 20 July 2018, which aims
at providing a causal and comfort environment for its patronage,
and a restaurant, namely Tiger Room, on 15 June 2018, in the
heart of Sheung Wan. While a restaurant, namely Tiger Curry &
Cafe, was closed on 7 August 2018 due to the non-renewal of
the lease.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group's strategy remains unchange and diversifies
our outlet network by adopting the following key business
strategies:

Upgrade our club facilities

The Group undertakes minor renovations for our clubs on an as-
needed basis depending on the condition of our equipment and
facilities.

Expand our market share in food and beverage, lifestyle and
entertainment industry

Despite the keen competition and challenging operating
environment in the food and beverage, lifestyle and
entertainment industry in Hong Kong, the Group is still looking
for business opportunities to enhance the market share in
both clubbing and entertainment and restaurant business, in
the meantime, the Group will continue to refine the business
strategy to cope with the continuing challenges.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 May 2018, the Group's revenue was
generated from the operation of clubbing and entertainment and
restaurant business in Hong Kong. For the year ended 31 May
2018, the Group was operating two clubs, one entertainment
studio and four restaurants located in Hong Kong. Tiger Curry
was closed on 10 April 2018 due to a notice in writing has
been given by the lawyer of the landlord in which the landlord
decided to terminate the existing tenancy agreement.

The Group recognised revenue from (a) the clubbing and
entertainment operations when (i) sales of beverages were
delivered; (ii) services were provided or other products were
delivered (including tips, cloakroom fees, photobooth, event
rental income and service income from an entertainment studio)
to its customers; (b) the restaurant operations when food and
beverage and other related services have been rendered; and (c)
entertainment income when services have been rendered.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TEERESNWE DN

The table below sets forth the breakdown of the revenue by
clubbing and entertainment and restaurant operations for the
years ended 31 May 2018 and 2017:

2018

20184

HK$°000

FHET WhEKZED T

TREHPEZE2018F KX2017F5H318 1t
FERGHT MRS M ERELIEE 5 rA
48 :

For the year ended 31 May

HBE5A31ALEE

2017
20174
% of total % of total
revenue HK$'000 revenue

TBT 154Kz B D

Clubbing and ST NMIRGLEE

entertainment

operations 66,707 78.2 78,477 81.6
Restaurant operations BELE 18,636 21.8 17,687 18.4
Total FEE 85,343 100.0 96,164 100.0

The revenue generated from operation of clubbing and
entertainment business decreased by approximately HK$11.8
million, or approximately 15.0%, from approximately HK$78.5
million for the year ended 31 May 2017 to approximately
HK$66.7 million for the year ended 31 May 2018. Such decrease
was mainly due to the result of rising competition in clubbing
business and the decrease in sale of prepaid beverage packages
to our customers.

The revenue generated from operation of restaurant business
increased by approximately HK$ 0.9 million, or approximately 5.4
%, from approximately HK$17.7 million for the year ended 31
May 2017 to approximately HK$18.6 million for the year ended
31 May 2018. The increase in revenue was primarily attributable
to the result of the increase by revenue contributed from Tiger
San which was opened on 16 December 2017 but partially
offset by rising competition and general downturns in the food
and beverage industry and close down of Tiger Curry on 10 April
2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cost of inventories sold

The cost of inventories sold mainly represented the cost of
beverage and food ingredients used in the Group's clubbing and
entertainment and restaurant operations. The major beverage
and food ingredients purchased by the Group includes, but is not
limited to, champagne, frozen food, dried food, etc.. The cost of
inventories sold was one of the components of the operating
expenses which decreased by approximately HK$1.5 million, or
approximately 7.9%, from approximately HK$19.1 million for the
year ended 31 May 2017 to approximately HK$17.6 million for
the year ended 31 May 2018. The decrease was mainly due to
the decreased revenue of clubbing operations.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains mainly represents the reversal of
provision of reinstatement cost, management fee income and
bank interest income.

The table below sets forth the breakdown of the other income
and gains for the years ended 31 May 2017 and 2018.

EEENWKRDN
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For the year ended 31 May

BE5A31BLEE

2018 2017

20184 20174

HKD HKD

BT JBIT

Reversal of provision of reinstatement cost B EH&1E R A B 200 -
Interest income F 2 A 177 1
Management fee income BERBA - 72
Total mEt 377 73

The other income and gains increased by approximately HK$0.3
million, or approximately 416.4%, from approximately HK$
0.1 million for the year ended 31 May 2017 to approximately
HK$0.4 million for the year ended 31 May 2018. The increase
was mainly due to (i) the increase in reversal of provision of
reinstatement cost on Tiger Curry which was closed on 10 April
2018; and (i) the increase in interest income which is mainly
generated from net proceeds placed in the bank accounts of
the Group.

HEiW AR KREHEE2017F5 8318 IEF
EHO1EEEILE MO0 3BEE B LKL
416.4% EHE2018F5 A3 HILEEX0.4H
ST o ZIBIMNEZZ MM () Tiger Curry (2
M2018F4 A108 &2 ) ME RSB AR E
BN &G EZHRTFRNAEBRITEREHAT
SIIEFREATE A F B U ASLINATEL -
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Property rentals and related expenses

Property rentals and related expenses primarily represented
the rental payments under operating leases and property
management fee paid for the club and entertainment premises,
restaurants premises and office premises. The property rentals
and related expenses were one of the components of the
operating expenses which increased by approximately HK$2.2
million, or approximately 9.6%, from approximately HK$23.0
million for the year ended 31 May 2017 to approximately
HK$25.2 million for the year ended 31 May 2018. The increase
was mainly due to property rentals and related expenses
incurred by our Tiger San and Maximus Studio which
were opened on 16 December 2017 and 21 January 2018,
respectively.

Advertising and marketing expenses

Advertising and marketing expenses primarily consisted of
advertising and promotional expenses such as the cost of
engaging resident and guest DJs and the expenses incurred
for engaging a public relations company for the provision of
marketing and promotion services to the Group's clubbing,
entertainment and restaurant operations. The advertising and
marketing expenses increased by approximately HK$2.2 million,
or approximately 18.3%, from approximately HK$11.9 million for
the year ended 31 May 2017 to approximately HK$14.1 million
for the year ended 31 May 2018. The increase was mainly due
to the increase in advertising and marketing expenses on the
featured events which included night entertainment events (i)
lead by an internationally renowned guest DJ; or (ii) based on
festival and holiday themes, for the year ended 31 May 2018.

Employee benefits expenses

Employee benefits expenses primarily consisted of all salaries
and benefits payable to all employees and staff, including the
executive Directors, headquarters staff and operational staff
in each outlet. The employee benefits expenses increased by
approximately HK$8.9 million, or approximately 48.8 %, from
approximately HK$18.3 million for the year ended 31 May
2017 to approximately HK$27.2 million for the year ended 31
May 2018. The increase was primarily due to the (i) increase in
staff cost as a result of additional staff in our head office after
Listing, (ii) the discretionary bonus of approximately HK$5.4
million for the year ended 31 May 2018 paid to directors, senior
management and employees of the Company with reference
to the Group's and individual’'s performance and (iii) the
increase in staff costs as a result the expansion of our clubbing,
entertainment and restaurant operations.
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Depreciation

Depreciation represented the depreciation charge for property,
plant and equipment, including, among others, leasehold
improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment and motor
vehicles. Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as
to write off their cost net of expected residual value over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The depreciation
recorded at approximately HK$4.3 million and HK$4.7 million for
the years ended 31 May 2017 and 2018, respectively.

Listing expenses

Listing expenses of approximately HK$15.5 million were
recognised for the year ended 31 May 2017 No such expenses
were incurred for the year ended 31 May 2018.

Other expenses

Other expenses mainly represented security expenses for
the clubs, credit card commissions, repairs and maintenance
costs, promotional expenses, cleaning expenses, professional
fee and impairment loss on property, plant and equipment. The
other expenses increased by approximately HK$75 million, or
approximately 58.0%, from approximately HK$13.1 million for
the year ended 31 May 2017 to approximately HK$20.6 million
for the year ended 31 May 2018. Such increase was mainly due
to the (i) additional professional fee paid after Listing, (ii) the
increase in other expenses in line with our business expansion,
(iii) written off of property, plant and equipment due to close of
outlets and (iv) the increase in promotional expenses.

Loss before income tax expense

As a result of the cumulative factors discussed above, the
loss before income tax expense increased from approximately
HK$8.9 million for the year ended 31 May 2017 to approximately
HK$23.9 million for the year ended 31 May 2018.

Loss and total comprehensive expenses for the year

As a result of the cumulative factors discussed above, the
loss and total comprehensive expenses increased from
approximately HK$9.8 million for the year ended 31 May 2017 to
approximately HK$25.8 million for the year ended 31 May 2018.

EEENWKRDN

e

WEEME BEREE (2% (EheE) A
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FINANCIAL POSITION, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The Group recorded net cash used in operating activities
of approximately HK$9.9 million for the year ended 31 May
2017 to net cash used in operating activities of approximately
HK$49.2 million for the year ended 31 May 2018, primarily due
to (i) increase in financial assets at fair value through profit and
loss; (ii) the decrease of revenue receipts and (iii) the payment
of advertising and marketing expenses, employee benefits
expenses and other expenses.

As at 31 May 2018, the Group's total cash and bank
balances (including cash and cash equivalents and restricted
bank deposits) were approximately HK$35.7 million (2017:
approximately HK$60.7 million). The current ratio (calculated
by current assets divided by current liabilities) of the Group
decreased from approximately 4.1 times as at 31 May 2017 to
approximately 1.6 times as at 31 May 2018. The gearing ratio
(calculated by net debt divided by total capital) of the Group
were net cash position as at 31 May 2017 and 2018.

As at 31 May 2018, the Group obtained total unutilised banking
facility of HK$57.8 million granted from commercial banks for
the working capital.

The shares of the Company were successfully listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange on 7 April 2017 since then, there was
no change in the capital structure of the Group. The capital
structure of the Group comprises of issued share capital and
reserves. As at 31 May 2018, the equity attributable to owners
of the Company amounted to approximately HK$42.6 million
(2017: approximately HK$67.7 million).

USE OF PROCEEDS

Based on the offer price of HK$0.34 per offer share, the net
proceeds from the Listing, after deducting the underwriting
commission and other estimated expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$43.9 million.
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On 11 May 2018, the Board resolved to change the use of the
net proceeds as set out in the section headed “Future Plans
and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. Details of the original
allocation of the net proceeds, the revised allocation of the net
proceeds, the utilisation of the net proceeds as at 11 May 2018
and the remaining balance after the revised allocation of the net

Management Discussion

proceeds are set out as follows:

and Analysis
EEENB®R DM

L 2E

R2018F5A1MH EFSH AP ERKRER
[RARETEI MATERERR ] —fMEMAE
REBEFEAE AHEMGSREFENRES
fid - BT SRIBFRER (ST D BE - 7201845
AN BREFIEFENBREA NS RIEF
BRSEI DR EMBBENFBEYIET

Utilised net Remaining
proceeds (as at balance after
Uses of the Net Proceeds Original allocation Revised allocation 11 May 2018) revised allocation
BB RMEHE
FHE(R2018F  KBFTDELER)
TS IR SRR REDE RiET D 5ANAE) ]
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BE¥T BE#T BE#T BEET
Continuing to expand BEBARZULHEA
and diversify the AEENPERSE
outlet network of
the Group
- Establishing two sports- — FRMEE T &
themed bars JEIE 19.5 12.0 1.9 10.1
- Establishing two - REMEBEVEER
standalone restaurants MEERESGEE
and two food court
restaurants 6.8 6.8 3 83
26.3 18.8 5.4 13.4
Upgrading the club RAXEENE kit
facilities of the Group
- Renovating and — B R Volar
refurbishing Volar 1.6 6.7 0.2 6.5
- Renovating and — EEREFFY
refurbishing Fly 4.5 9.4 1.5 79
16.1 16.1 1.7 14.4
Increasing marketing MAKEBWEENE
effort of the Group - 3.7 - 3.7
Enhancing corporate BAREENEERR
image of the Group - 1.0 - 1.0
General working capital AEE—-RLEES
of the Group 1.5 4.3 15 2.8
43.9 43.9 8.6 35.3

The details of the re-allocation of the use of proceeds was set

EREFDEAMBFTARENFBHNARR

out in the announcement of the Company dated 11 May 2018. HEIA2018FE5 A1 BRI AL -
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Accordingly, up to 31 May 2018, following the above-mentioned  F It > £ £2018F5A31H » & Fall AR K &
adjustment and change in use of the net proceeds (collectively B FTIEREBEFEAS (K [HARE]|)%K &
the “Adjustments”), the plans for application of the net MFTERIEFENTEFARMT ([KEFEH
proceeds were adjusted as follows (the “Adjusted Plan”): g]):

Adjusted allocation
of net proceeds in

Amount unutilised
in accordance

accordance with with the
the Adjusted Amount Adjusted Plan
Plan up to utilised as at as at
Uses of the net proceeds 31 May 2018 31 May 2018 31 May 2018
EHZ=2018%F
5831 BIRBEAE 20184  72018%5H31H
RS ESa SH31HEH  BEBLHZEEIW
PSR IE S5 A S FriS s I8 558 [RE A RENBEHE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
H&EET BEET BEET
Continuing to expand and EERARZ T
diversify the outlet RAAEER
network of the Group P95 4845 18.8 5.4 13.4
Upgrading the club facilities $2F AN EH)
of the Group SRR 16.1 1.7 14.4
Increasing marketing effort  IIAREEH]
of the Group B NE 3.7 0.6 3.1
Enhancing corporate image  I2FHAREEH
of the Group TEER 1.0 - 1.0
General working capital of ~ AEBE—KREEES
the Group 4.3 2.8 1.5
43.9 10.5 33.4

The unutilised net proceeds from the Listing in accordance with

RIBZ AR B RE A LM AT RIAFRES

TFHR AR BRIRITERS °

the Adjusted Plan are placed in the bank accounts of the Group.

18 \ BCI Group Holdings Limited &M %&EABR QA



Management Discussion and Analysis

The future plan and the planned amount of usage of net
proceeds as stated in the Adjusted Plan were based on the
best estimation and assumption of future market conditions at
the time of preparing the announcement of the Company dated
11 May 2018 while the proceeds were applied based on the
actual development of the Group’s business and the industry.
An analysis comparing the business objective stated in the
prospectus with the Group's actual business progress is set out
below:

Business objective and
strategy Business plan and activity

X155 B R SR BE ELGE N VAT

(1)Upgrade our club facilities  Renovate and refurbish Fly
e Execute planned renovation at
Fly

Renovate and refurbish Volar
e Set up project team

e Engage contractors for the
renovation and refurbishment

e Engage designers for the
concept of renovation and

refurbishment

e (Carry out renovation and
refurbishment

(MRTH &R g RBFFly
° HITRTEIBEFly

BiE REF Volar
o FXIEH B

o REEABHETEELRENIRE

i

)
B

b

3

o REBRGIEIGIERE LB TR

=0

C.

o HITEENEFIIE

EEENWKRDN

AT B AT B PR KA B M PR 1S BURF B RO B
ERZeBIENRREARARHHH201855
A1 B RAEREREH RO FEDT REX
e M AT IR TSI RN R B RITEM
ERERTUABAE -BRERMEEFERE
AEBEREBERNLBEOWEIIT :

Actual business progress up to
31 May 2018
HZE2018F5 A3 AN ER £ ERE

e Renovation and refurbishment of Fly
have not been carried out as at 31 May
2018.

e \We have set up a project team and
obtained quotation from various
contractors and designer.

e No renovation and refurbishment of
Volar have been carried out as at 31
May 2018 as the Company is still under
negotiation with the contractor and
designer.

o R2018F5A31H  NARIEAREITFIYA
s LB TR

s RMEXRIIEEEN  WBZZABREK
RETEMER S (B -

o HMAAATIRIFHABN LB ETEMERY
M F2018% 5 A31 B{iA#77 Volarf & &
LEF I
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Business objective and
strategy
ESASEEISE S

(2) Continue to expand and
diversify our outlet network
for clubbing operation

2) BB A L Z TR E T
EEMNPIEBRS

(3) Continue to expand and
diversify our outlet network
for restaurant operation

JBEBRANMZILILRBERE
LEMPL RS

Business plan and activity

EXGEE

SO D)

Establish sports-themed bars

Execute planned establishment
of first sports-themed bar

Explore opportunities with
cooperation partners and
conduct feasibility studies for
our second sports-themed bar

B B) AT
o HITFHEIRREMES T EEE

o BREAEBHOLERERY

FME —EES) E REE TR
TR 5

Set up a standalone restaurant in
Tsing Yi
e Execute planned establishment

of standalone restaurant in
Tsing Vi

Set up a standalone restaurant in
Sheung Wan
e Execute planned establishment

of standalone restaurant in
Sheung Wan

Set up food court restaurants
e Set up a project team and

conduct a study

EEXAR—ABLE F
s MITREETXRARBULER
FIRAR B ERE
o MITREE LIRARBILER

MRERESER
o FRIIEE BB WHEITHR
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Actual business progress up to
31 May 2018

B Z2018F5 31 HMER

EHER

A sports-themed bar is opened on 20
July 2018.

We have set up a project team and
conducted study of potential locations
regarding the accessibility, visibility,
size, structure, the demographics and
rental trends.

IR 20187 A208 R —
JEINE o

EEEH T &

ﬁﬁaﬁiﬁﬁlﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BREAEN BREREBIEE K/ &H-
Aﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂitﬂﬁﬁﬁ%°

A standalone restaurant in Tsing Yi is
opened on 16 December 2017.

A standalone restaurant in Sheung Wan
has not been opened as at 31 May
2018.

We have set up a project team
and conducted a study of potential
location regarding pedestrian traffic,
convenience, demographics, size,
structure and completion.

FFIMR2017F12 16 B S KR — M98
SERE-

R2018F5 8318 Ui FIREVE L EBE
EENEE

BAEKIIER BB YRHEELENA
B BAE - ADRRC A/ SRR
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are certain risks involved in the operations of the Group's
business. Set forth below are some of the major risks that
could materially and adversely affect the Group.

1) In order to expand and diversify our outlet network,
we expect to establish sports-themed bars and set up
more restaurants in Hong Kong. The food and beverage
, lifestyle and entertainment industry in Hong Kong is
highly competitive. Our ability to successfully open new
outlets is subject to a number of risks and uncertainties,
including identifying suitable locations and/or securing
leases on reasonable terms, timely securing necessary
governmental approvals and licences, ability to hire
quality personnel, timely delivery in decoration and
renovation works, securing sufficient customer demand,
securing adequate suppliers and inventory that meet
our quality standards on timely basis, reducing potential
cannibalisation effects between the locations of our
outlets and the general economic conditions. The costs
incurred in opening of new outlets and the expansion
plans may place substantial strain on our managerial,
operational and financial resources. As such, we cannot
assure that we can always operate the expanded network
on a profitable basis or that any new outlet will reach the
planned operating levels. If any new outlet experiences
prolonged delays in breaking even or achieving our
desired level of profitability or operate at a loss, our
operational and financial resources could be strained and
our overall profitability could be affected.

EEENWKRDN

TERBRIEERE
AEBENRGEE S RETRR - Al H A%
BUEKRBEATHEZENE TEEZRARHS A
Te
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2)

3)

For the years ended 31 May 2017 and 2018, revenue
generated from Volar accounted for approximately 65.5
% and 64.9 % of our total revenue, respectively. Our
success therefore depends significantly on our ability to
attract beverage sales, entrance income and market our
other offerings under our “Volar” brand, which in turn
depends on, among other things, the market perception
and acceptance of the brand. Negative publicity about
our “Volar” brand, the premises on which Volar operates
or its offerings, us or our management could materially
and adversely affect public perception of this brand. Any
significant operational or other difficulties in the business
at or from Volar may reduce, disrupt or halt our operation
and business at the premises, which would materially
and adversely affect our business, prospects, reputation,
financial condition and results of operation. Experiencing
problems in operation which result in the need to close
the club temporarily or permanently will materially and
adversely affect our results of operations and financial
condition.

As we lease or license all of the properties on which our
outlets operate, we are exposed to the fluctuations in
the commercial real estate market. There is no objective
way for us to accurately predict the rental rates in the
commercial real estate market in Hong Kong, and our
substantial operating lease obligations expose us to
potentially significant risks, including increasing our
vulnerability to adverse economic conditions, limiting
our ability to obtain additional financing and reducing
our cash available for other purposes. Any non-renewal
(whether a result of the landlord’s or licensor’'s or our
decision) or termination of any of our leases or licence or
substantial increased rentals or licence fees could cause
us to close the relevant outlet or relocate to another site,
depending on our business needs or performance from
time to time. In such events, we could face a drop in
sales, write off leasehold improvements, and could incur
relocation costs for renovation, removal and resources
allocation, which could in turn result in financial strain in
our operations and diversion of management resources.
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4) For the years ended 31 May 2017 and 2018, purchases
from our largest supplier accounted for approximately
54.8 % and 53.4 % of our total purchases, respectively.
We make purchases from the supplier under individual
purchase order, and have not entered into any long term
contracts. If the supplier for any reason reduces the
volume supplied to us or cease to supply to us, we will
need to find alternative suppliers on similar sale terms
and conditions acceptable to us. If we fail to do so in
a timely manner, the operations of our clubs will be
interrupted, our costs may increase and our business,
financial condition, results of operations and growth
prospects may therefore be materially and adversely
affected.

To address the above risks and uncertainties, the Directors
will closely monitor the progress of the expansion plan, to
operate the expanded network on a profitable basis timely. The
Directors will also continue to explore opportunities to diversify
our operation so that we could reduce our reliance on Volar and
the largest supplier. The Directors will continue to review and
evaluate the business objective and strategy and make timely
execution taking into account the business risks and market
uncertainties.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Company's shares were successfully listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange on 7 April 2017 There has been no change in
the Company's capital structure since 7 April 2017 The capital
structure of the Group comprises of issued share capital and
reserves. The Directors review and manage the Group's capital
structure regularly.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

For the year ended 31 May 2018, Bannock Holdings Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, subscribed for
the US$- denominated short dated corporate bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of US$2,550,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$19.9 million). Details of the above were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 2
October 2017

Save as disclosed above, except for investment in its
subsidiaries, the Group did not hold any significant investment
for the year ended 31 May 2018.

EEENWKRDN
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

The Group did not carry out any material acquisition nor disposal
of any subsidiaries for the year ended 31 May 2018.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company, or by
any of the companies now comprising the Group for the years
ended 31 May 2017 and 2018.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Since most of transactions are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, the Group is not exposed to significant foreign exchange
exposure.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 May 2018, the Group had capital commitments
amounted to approximately HK$2.4 million (2017: HK$0.1
million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as
at 31 May 2017 and 2018.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 May 2018, all of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss with aggregate value of approximately HK$20.0
million (31 May 2017: Nil) and restricted bank deposit of
approximately HK$2.1 million (31 May 2017: Nil) were pledged
to secured bank loan.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 May 2018, the Group employed 125 employees
(2017: 104 employees). Employee costs (including Directors’
remuneration, wages, salaries, performance related bonuses,
other benefits and contribution to defined contribution pension
plans) amounted to approximately HK$27.2 million for the year
ended 31 May 2018 (2017: approximately HK$18.3 million).
The Group will endeavor to ensure that the employees’
salary levels are in line with industry practice and prevailing
market conditions and that employees’ overall remuneration is
determined based on the Group's and their performance.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEkS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester (2#E#), aged 51, is one of the
founders of the Group, a controlling shareholder, the chairman
and executive Director. He joined the Group in July 2013. Mr.
Ng is mainly responsible for the overall strategic development
and planning of the Group. Mr. Ng started investing in food
and beverage and entertainment business since 2005 and
is familiar with industry trends, market behaviour, customer
and supplier impact and dealing with competitions and other
operational challenges. He has assumed a leading role in the
management and is responsible for formulating direction. He
has actively involved in the handling of finance and investment
related issues of the Group since establishment. He has
over 21 years of experience in the investment and financing
industry. Mr. Ng worked at Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific) Limited
(principally engaged in the provision of capital market, advisory
and wealth management services before it was acquired by
Bank of America Corporation in January 2009) and left in the
position of managing director and head of China and Hong Kong
equity capital markets and financing (being mainly responsible
for business management and development) from February
1995 to August 2006. He then worked at J.P. Morgan Securities
(Asia Pacific) Limited (principally engaged in the provision of
investment banking and financial services) with his last position
being managing director in equities capital markets of global
investment banking department and chairman of Asia Pacific
equity capital and derivatives markets (being mainly responsible
for business management and development) from August 2006
to April 2013. Mr. Ng has been chief executive officer (being
mainly responsible for the overall strategic directions of the
company) of GRE Investment Advisors Limited (a company
licensed under the SFC (Type 4 (advising on securities) and
Type 9 (asset management) licences) and principally engaged
in the provision of investment advisory and asset management
services) since August 2014. Mr. Ng obtained a bachelor's
degree in medical sciences from the University of Nottingham
in the United Kingdom in July 1990.

Ms. Lau Sze Yuen (ZI21#i), aged 42, is the executive director.
She joined the Group in June 2016. She is mainly responsible
for the overall day-to-day administration and management of
the Group. Ms. Lau has over 16 years of experience in the food
and beverage and entertainment industry. She worked as an
assistant manager (being mainly responsible for daily operation
of the restaurant) at Tony Roma’'s Famous For Ribs Hong Kong
(principally engaged in restaurant business) from July 2000 to
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June 2001. Ms. Lau was an assistant manager in marketing (being
mainly responsible for business development) at San Francisco
Steak House (principally engaged in restaurant business) from
August 2001 to October 2003. She then served as the general
manager (being mainly responsible for business development)
of Hong Kong Ganpachi Limited (currently known as Hong Kong
Hachiban Limited) (principally engaged in the business of food
manufacturing and restaurant) from October 2003 to February
2010. Ms. Lau was the administrative and office manager (being
mainly responsible for overseeing the daily operations) of Buzz
Concepts Group Limited (principally engaged in the provision of
management services in food and beverage and entertainment
industry) from July 2010 to June 2016. Ms. Lau obtained a
higher diploma in hotel and catering management from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in Hong Kong in August 1999.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Kan Sze Man (f§* ), aged 46, was appointed as the
non-executive Director on 14 March 2017 Mr. Kan is mainly
responsible for the development and planning of the Group. Mr.
Kan has over 15 years of experience in the property investment
field. Mr. Kan was a trainee solicitor and subsequently an
assistant solicitor of Johnson Stokes & Master (currently known
as Mayer Brown JSM) (principally engaged in the provision of
legal services) from October 1995 to October 1997 and from
October 1997 to December 1999, respectively. He worked at
Freshfields (currently known as Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer)
(principally engaged in the provision of legal services) as a
solicitor from January 2000 to May 2000. He then served as a
senior vice president and legal counsel (being mainly responsible
for leading the legal department) of Hikari Tsushin International
Limited (currently known as China Oil And Gas Group Limited)
(a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 603)
and formerly principally engaged in investment in internet
and telecommunication related business and manufacture of
electronic products) from May 2000 to March 2001. Mr. Kan is
currently an executive director, chief operating officer and group
general counsel (being mainly responsible for leading the legal
department and strategic business planning) of CSI Properties
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
497) and principally engaged in property repositioning and
investment with its subsidiaries principally engaged in property
value enhancement and development, property investment and
securities investment in Hong Kong and PRC). He joined CSI
Properties Limited as an executive director and group general
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counsel in March 2001. Mr. Kan obtained a bachelor of arts
degree in philosophy, politics and economics from Wadham
College, University of Oxford in the United Kingdom in July
1993. He then obtained his diploma in law and a postgraduate
diploma in legal practice from The College of Law, London in the
United Kingdom in 1994 and 1995, respectively. He has been
admitted as a solicitor of Hong Kong since November 2007.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Sui Chi (E&/&), aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 14 March 2017 He is
also the chairman of the audit committee and a member of each
of the nomination committee and remuneration committee. Mr.
Wong has over 21 years of finance and accounting experience
including but not limited to, financial management, corporate
management and auditing, serving in international accounting
firms, manufacturing and retailing companies, listed property
development company, securities and futures brokerage
company and shipping company. He was an independent non-
executive director of Legend Strategy International Holdings
Group Company Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1355) and principally engaged in the
budget hotel operations and provision of hotel consultancy
and management services in the PRC) from December 2012
to July 2015. Mr. Wong was an independent non-executive
director of U Banquet Group Holding Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1483) and principally
engaged in the operation of full-service Chinese restaurant
chain in Hong Kong) from November 2013 to October 2016.
He is currently an independent non-executive director of Wan
Cheng Metal Packaging Company Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8291) since February 2017
He has been the financial controller (being mainly responsible
for planning and directing the finance and accounting functions
and providing financial analysis to the management) of Shine
Vision Investments Limited (principally engaged in the retailing
of eyewear products) since March 2012. Mr. Wong obtained
a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy from the City
Polytechnic of Hong Kong (currently known as City University
of Hong Kong) in Hong Kong in November 1991, a master of
science degree in financial management from the University of
London in the United Kingdom in December 2003. He obtained
a certificate in taxation and accounting in PRC organized by the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in Hong Kong in August 2004.
Mr. Wong has been a member of the Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and an associate of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales since April 2008 and July
2008, respectively.
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Mr. Li Lap Sun (Z3%7), aged 51, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 14 March 2017 He is
also the chairman of the nomination committee and a member
of each of the audit committee and remuneration committee.
Mr. Li worked at Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific) Limited (principally
engaged in the provision of capital market, advisory and
wealth management services before it was acquired by Bank
of America Corporation in January 2009) from March 1994
to October 2004 and left in the position of director (being
mainly responsible for heading the equity sales team in
Hong Kong). He then worked at Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C.
(principally engaged in investment banking, securities and
investment management businesses) with his last position
being executive director in the equity division (being mainly
responsible for providing investment advice to fund managers
and leading marketing projects for equity sales) from October
2004 to March 2007. Subsequently, he has been the director
and fund manager (being mainly responsible for investment
portfolio management and compliance matters) of Spitzer Asset
Management Limited (a company licensed under the SFC (Type
9 (asset management) licence) and principally engaged in the
provision of asset management services) since August 2007
Mr. Li obtained a bachelor of arts degree in economics from
the University of California, Los Angeles in the United States of
America in June 1989 and a master of business administration
degree from The University of Southern California in the United
States of America in May 1992.

Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy ({RE]&), aged 53, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 14 March 2017
He is also the chairman of the remuneration committee and
a member of each of the audit committee and nomination
committee. Mr. Ng has over 21 years of experience in the fields
of accounting and auditing as well as business and financial
advisory. He worked as an auditor in Ernest & Young (principally
engaged in the provision of assurance, tax, advisory and
transaction advisory services) between July 1989 and August
1992. He was an assistant director (being mainly responsible
for overseeing the finance, accounting and investment
businesses) in the accounting department of Capital Asia
Limited (currently known as Goldin Properties Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 283) and
principally engaged in property development) from June 1993
to August 1996. He worked as group financial controller (being
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mainly responsible for overseeing the finance, accounting and
investment businesses) in Fortune Oil Holdings Plc. (principally
engaged in investments and operations in oil and gas supply
and infrastructure projects in China) from June 2001 to March
2008. He was the chief financial officer of the mining division
of Mongolia Investment Group Limited (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0402) and principally engaged
in the mining and construction businesses) from May 2010 to
March 2013, and following its name changed to Peace Map
Holding Limited and its business changed to the provision of
aerial sensing data services in China, he was re-designated
as senior consultant (being mainly responsible for overseeing
the finance, accounting and investment businesses) until he
left in December 2013. Mr. Ng has been an executive director
(being mainly responsible for the business development
and transactions execution) of Kolux Development Limited
(principally engaged in corporate consulting business) since
its incorporation on 25 August 1992. He was an independent
non-executive director of Huiyin Holdings Group Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:1178) from
June 2017 to December 2017 He is currently non-executive
director of China Billion Resources Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 274) since March 2018. Mr.
Ng obtained an honours diploma in accountancy from Lingnam
College (currently known as Lingnam University) in Hong
Kong in November 1988, a bachelor of commerce accounting
degree from Curtin University of Technology in Australia in
February 1996 and a master of business administration degree
from The University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in November
2007 He has been a fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since May 2000, a fellow of Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants since October 1996 and an
associate of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales since January 2005.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Gurung Bhojendra, aged 41, is the general manager
of Volar, and is responsible for the day-to-day operation and
management of Volar. Mr. Gurung joined Volar in December
2004 as a general manager, and has over 13 years of experience
in the management of night entertainment clubs.

Mr. Kharga Vishal, aged 35, is the general manager of Fly, and
is responsible for the day-to-day operation and management of
Fly. He joined our Group in July 2014 as general manager of Fly.
He has over 8 years of experience in the management of food
and beverage and entertainment establishments. Mr. Kharga
worked at Hero Corporation Limited (currently known as Buzz
Concepts Management Limited) (formerly principally engaged in
the operation of a bar) with his last position being the general
manager (being mainly responsible for daily operations) from
December 2006 to December 2011, a bar manager (being
mainly responsible for overseeing operations of the bar in the
restaurant) of Lucky Trend International Limited (principally
engaged in the management and operation of a restaurant)
from December 2011 to July 2012, and the general manager
(being mainly responsible for daily operations) of Billion Best
Investment Limited (principally engaged in the management and
operations of a restaurant and bar) from August 2012 to June
2014.

Mr. Wong Chi Wai (E& &), aged 33, is our company secretary.
He joined the Group in August 2016. Mr. Wong is mainly
responsible for the overall management of the company
secretarial affairs and financial matters of the Group. He was
a manager (being mainly responsible for supervising and
conducting client engagements) at Samuel H. Wong & Co.
(principally engaged in the provision of audit, secretarial, tax
and other services for Hong Kong and overseas client) from
December 2008 to March 2014. He was the company secretary
of Tic Tac International Holdings Company Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1470) and principally
engaged in watch retailing business) from February 2015 to
November 2015. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor's degree in
business administration with a major in accountancy and a minor
in financial services from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in Hong Kong in October 2008. He has been a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since May
2012.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance by emphasizing transparency, independence,
accountability, responsibilities and fairness. The Board strives to
ensure that effective self-regulatory practices exist to protect
the interests of the shareholders of the Company and to
enhance long-term shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules throughout the year. The Company has applied the
principles of, and complied with, the applicable code provisions
of the CG Code during the year ended 31 May 2018, except for
certain deviations as specified with considered reasons for such
deviations as explained below. The Board will keep reviewing
and updating such practices from time to time to ensure
compliance with legal and commercial standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is primarily responsible for formulating strategies,
monitoring performance and managing risks of the Group. At
the same time, it also has the duty to enhance the effectiveness
of the corporate governance practices of the Group. Under the
Board, there are three board committees, namely the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee.
All these committees perform their distinct roles in accordance
with their respective terms of reference (available on the
Company's website) and assist the Board in supervising certain
functions of the senior management.

Pursuant to Rule 5.66 of the GEM Listing Rule, the Directors
have also requested any employee of the Company or director
or employee of a subsidiary of the Company who, because of
his/her office or employment in the Company or a subsidiary, is
likely to possess inside information in relation to the securities
of the Company not to deal in securities of the Company when
he/she would be prohibited from dealing by the code of conduct
as if he/she was a Director.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group adopted Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings.
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Having made specific enquiries to all the Directors and all the
Directors confirmed they have complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct for directors’
securities transactions during the year ended 31 May 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At present, the Board of the Company comprises six Directors
as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester (Chairman and Executive Director)
Ms. Lau Sze Yuen

Non-Executive Director:
Mr. Kan Sze Man

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Sui Chi
Mr. Li Lap Sun
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 25 to 30.

The Board has the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company. They are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising the
Group's affairs. The Board is accountable to the shareholders
for the strategic development of the Group with the goal of
maximizing long-term shareholder value, while balancing broader
stakeholder interests.
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The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings,
audit committee meetings, remuneration committee meeting,
nomination committee meeting and general meeting for the
year ended 31 May 2018 is set out in the following table:

A M

TEEREE

HE2018F5A3MHIFE SEEHFES
geH BENLELLH FZEgoH -
REZEeeENRERSHEHEERII W
T

Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting
(attendance/ (attendance/ (attendance/ (attendance/ (attendance/
total no. of total no. of total no. of total no. of total no. of
Name of Directors meeting held) meeting held) meeting held) meeting held) meeting held)
g BRZES rhzeg RE%ZEE REAE
(bFez 2R (LEgE 22 (LRgz ga (LFex (hRe®
KRB/ BT B/ BT K&/ BT R/ BT RE /BT
i BRAH) 2HREE) R ) SHRAH) SHRAH)
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester REBELE 4/4 4/4 n I N/A TN EF
Ms. Lau Sze Yuen 2B mat 4/4 4/4 11 1/1 N/A N
Non-executive Director HHTEFE
Mr. Kan Sze Man HrRAE 4/4 474 1/1 17 N/A EF
Independent Non-executive BUFNTEE
Directors
Mr. Wong Sui Chi BB E 414 4/4 17 11 N/A @R
Mr. Li Lap Sun EXVE bt 4/4 4/4 i 11 N/A TN
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy MEELE 4/4 4/4 i 11 N/A N

All Directors are provided with details of agenda items for
decisions making with reasonable notice. Directors have access
to the advice and services of the company secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are complied
with and advising the Board on compliance matters. Directors
are also provided with access to independent professional
advice, where necessary, in carrying out their obligations as
Directors, at the expense of the Company. Directors who are
considered to have conflict of interests or material interests in
the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed would not
be counted in the quorum of meeting and would abstain from
voting on the relevant resolution.

ERESHESEBRNNESHSESRRER
HRBEOFHADER - EFAES R WERM
MEBERMRYE RRAWEAERRESZSRERF
BERMURAREENEFTSRHAER L2
B BEENASRBYEXESRABITREE
REZENBE  BRABARAEE - RSN
BRAETRSAMTREETFENEERLHE
BEEARGNES BT EF ABRERNE
EABA BB AERRZRINERE
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All Directors assume the responsibilities owed to the
shareholders of the Company for the well-being and success of
the Company. They are aware of their duties to act in good faith
and in the best interests of the Company.

The Board is responsible for maintaining proper accounting
records so as to enable the Directors to monitor the Company’s
overall financial position. The Board updates shareholders on
the operations and financial position of the Group through
quarterly, half yearly and annual results announcements as well
as the publication of timely announcements of other matters as
prescribed by the relevant rules and regulations.

The Company has three independent non-executive Directors,
at least one of whom has appropriate financial management
expertise, in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. Each of
the independent non-executive Director has made an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and
are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

According to the Company'’s articles of association, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual.

During the year ended 31 May 2018, the Company has not
separated the roles of chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company. Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester was the chairman of
the Company and responsible for overseeing the operations of
the Group. There is no chief executive officer of the Company.
The Board considers that such arrangement has the benefit of
ensuring consistent leadership within the Group and enables
more effective and efficient overall strategic planning of the
Group.
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Nevertheless, the Company will continue to look for suitable
candidates and will make necessary arrangement pursuant
to the requirement under A.2.1 of CG Code as and when
necessary.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

Under Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, all the non-
executive Directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. Each of the independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for three years but subject to termination in certain
circumstance as stipulated in the relevant service contracts. At
each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the
time being or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one third, shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years. Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of members after his
appointment and be eligible for re-election at such meeting and
any Director appointed as an addition to the existing board shall
hold office only until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance
duties and has adopted written terms of reference on its
corporate governance functions.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance
functions include:

(i)  developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(iiiy reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and

(v)  reviewing the Company's compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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Up to the date of this report, the Board has performed the
corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms of
reference.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year ended 31 May 2018, the Board adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company considered diversity of
board members can be achieved through consideration of a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills and knowledge. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

On recommendation from the nomination committee, the
Board will set measurable objectives to implement the Policy
and review such objectives from time to time to ensure their
appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives. The nomination committee will
review the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its continued
effectiveness from time to time.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
was set up on 14 March 2017 to oversee the remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management.

Within terms of reference in compliance with code
provision B1.2 of the CG code, the primary objectives of the
Remuneration Committee include making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure of the
Directors and the senior management and determining the
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
to ensure that no Director or any of his associates will
participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which will be
determined by reference to the performance of the individual
and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.
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During the year ended 31 May 2018, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members
namely:-

Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Sui Chi
Mr. Li Lap Sun

All the members are independent non-executive Directors.

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 March 2018 is set out below:

HK$ Nil to HK$1,000,000

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”) on 14 March 2017 for making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors and
succession planning for the directors.

Within terms of reference in compliance with code provision
A5.2 of the CG Code, the principal duties of the Nomination
Committee include reviewing the Board composition, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Directors, assessing the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and viewing the
board diversity policy.

In accordance with the Company's articles of association, Mr.
Kan Sze Man and Mr. Wong Sui Chi, shall retire and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

During the year ended 31 May 2018, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting.

The Nomination Committee recommended the re-appointment
of the Directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
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TEERKSE

The Nomination Committee comprises three members namely:—

Mr. Li Lap Sun (Chairman)
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy
Mr. Wong Sui Chi

All the members are independent non-executive Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) on 14 March 2017 with written terms of reference
in compliance with code provision C3.3 of the CG Code that set
out the authorities and duties of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee performs, amongst others, the following functions:

° Review financial information of the Group

° Review relationship with and terms of appointment of
the external auditors

o Review the Company's financial reporting system,
internal control system and risk management system.

During the year ended 31 May 2018, the Audit Committee
held four meetings. The Audit Committee oversees the internal
control system of the Group, reports to the Board on any
material issues, and makes recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee comprises three members namely:—

Mr. Wong Sui Chi (Chairman)
Mr. Li Lap Sun
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy

All the members are independent non-executive Directors
(including one independent non-executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise). None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company'’s existing external auditors.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
internal control systems in order to safeguard the Group's
assets and shareholders’ interests, and review and monitor
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems on a regular basis so as to ensure that
internal control and risk management systems in place are
adequate. The Company also has a process for identifying,
evaluating, and managing the significant risks to the
achievement of its operational objective. The risk management
and internal control systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objective,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. This process is subject
to continuous improvement up to the date of this report. The
day-to-day operation is entrusted to each individual department,
which is accountable for its own conduct and performance, and
is required to strictly adhere to the policies set by the Board.
The Company carries out reviews on the effectiveness of the
internal control systems from time to time in order to ensure
that they are able to meet and deal with the dynamic and ever
changing business environment.

The Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and are of the view that in light of the size, nature and
complexity of the business of the Group, it would be more cost
effective not to appoint external independent professionals to
perform internal audit function for the Group.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company on their
reporting responsibilities and opinion on the Group's financial
statements for the year ended 31 May 2018 is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor's Report” in this annual
report.

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for
considering the appointment of the external auditor and
reviewing any non-audit functions performed by the external
auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could lead
to any potential material adverse effect on the Company.
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The fees paid/payable to BDO Limited for the year ended 31
May 2018 are set out as follows:

HZE201855A31HILFECN BN TES
VIEEZEMESABEREATNNEREN N
T

Fee paid/payable

Bt TR E A

HK$'000

FEITL

Audit services EAZRRTE 700
Total FEE 700

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and
fair view. In preparing the financial statements, appropriate
accounting policies and standard are selected and applied
consistently.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring that Board
procedures are followed and facilitating communications among
Directors as well as with shareholders and management.

Mr. Wong Chi Wai was appointed as the company secretary of
the Company on 24 March 2017 and reported to the Chairman
of the Company.

Mr. Wong declared that he undertook not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training to update his skill and knowledge
immediate prior to the financial year date.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of
transparency is a key to enhancing investor relations. It
is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of
corporate information to its shareholders and investment public.
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The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual,
interim and quarterly reports. The corporate website of the
Company (www.bci-group.com.hk) has provided an effective
communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development (“CPD") to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. Reading materials on relevant
topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate. All
Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses.
During the year ended 31 May 2018, all the Directors are
encouraged to attend relevant training courses.

During the year ended 31 May 2018, all the Directors have
participated in continuous professional development and the
relevant details are set out below:
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CPD Participation
DEFEFEER

Name of Directors Yes/No
o= e =/ &
Executive Directors HITEF

Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester RABETE Yes &
Ms. Lau Sze Yuen 2Bzt Yes &
Non-executive Director IRTTEE

Mr. Kan Sze Man MtREE Yes &
Independent Non-executive Directors BUINTEE

Mr. Wong Sui Chi el Yes /&
Mr. Li Lap Sun ERVE i Yes &
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy hEEEA Yes &

Participation in CPD includes attending seminars, reading
relevant materials in relation to the business of the Group,
directors’ duties, latest development of the GEM Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our
shareholders with detailed information about the Company
so that they can exercise their rights as shareholders in an
informed manner.
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The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure
its shareholders are kept well informed of key business
imperatives. These include annual general meeting, annual
report, various notices, announcements and circulars. The annual
general meeting and other general meetings of the Company
are primary forums for communication between the Company
and its shareholders. The Company provides shareholders with
relevant information on the resolution(s) proposed at general
meetings in a timely manner in accordance with the GEM
Listing Rules. The information provided is reasonably necessary
to enable shareholders to make an informed decision on the
proposed resolution(s).

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

The Company has not made any change to its constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 May 2018. A consolidated
version of the Company's constitutional documents is available
on the Company's website and the website of the Stock
Exchange.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, shareholders are
requested to follow article 64 of the Articles of Association
of the Company which provides that extraordinary general
meetings should be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Board or the secretary for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2 months
after the deposit of such requisition. If the Board fails to
proceed to convene an extraordinary general meeting within 21
days of the deposit of the requisition, the requisitionist(s) may
convene an extraordinary general meeting himself/themselves,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as
a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PROPOSE A
PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for
election as a Director of the Company are laid down in Article
113 of the Company’'s Articles of Association. No person,
other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by
the Board for election, be eligible for election to the office of
Director at any general meeting, unless notice in writing of the
intention to propose that person for election as a Director and
notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged at the Head Office or at the Hong Kong
Branch Share Registrar. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under this Article will commence no earlier than the
day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than 7 days prior
to the date of such general meeting and the minimum length of
the period during which such notices to the Company may be
given will be at least 7 days.

PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for
the attention of company secretary, by email: jerry.wong@bci-
group.com, or mail to Basement, Ho Lee Commercial Building,
No. 38-44 D' Aguilar Street, Central, Hong Kong.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules, and publishes periodic reports and
announcements to the public in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations. The primary focus of the Company is to
ensure information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate, truthful
and complete, thereby enabling shareholders, investors as well
as the public to make rational and informed decisions.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance
could ensure an effective distribution of the resources and
shareholders’ interests. The senior management will continue
endeavors in maintaining, enhancing and increasing the Group's
corporate governance level and quality.
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BR - HEBREA®RSE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group regards corporate social responsibilities as
one of the core values of its business operations for
sustainable development. The Group persistently strives to
operate its business in an economic, environmentally, and
socially sustainable manner. The Group is keenly aware of
the importance of balancing its business needs with the
stewardship of the natural environment, the need to meet
market demand for resources, and the need to achieve a
harmonious development of society.

The Company presents this Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG"”) Report (the “Report”) for the year
ended 31 May 2018 (“Reporting Period”), in accordance the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set
out in Appendix 20 to GEM Listing Rules and based on the
material aspects of the Group and stakeholders.

The Report has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions
set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” under Appendix 20 to the Listing Rules. We value your
feedback regarding the review and our overall sustainability
practices. Please provide your comments by email to
info@bci-group.com.

This Report serves to provide details of the Company’s ESG
policies and initiatives of its major operating segment in Hong
Kong, which is principally engaged in the operation of clubbing,
entertainment and restaurant business.

The Board has the overall responsibility for the Company's
ESG strategy and reporting, monitoring and managing the ESG-
related risks. The management is responsible for evaluating
effectiveness of the ESG risk management and internal control
systems and the management confirms that these systems
are effective to mitigate our ESG related risks. Assessment of
ESG status and progress are conducted on an ongoing basis. To
understand the concerns of various stakeholders, the Company
has engaged and discussed with various business functions and
management personnel, and identified the following material
aspects and has managed them strictly in accordance with the
Group's policies and guidelines and in compliance with the
relevant legal and regulatory standards.
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During the Reporting Period, to the best of the knowledge
information and belief of the Directors having made all
reasonable enquiries, no member of the Group had been
involved in any material breach, or non-compliance, with any
applicable environmental law or regulation, or law or regulation
relating to employment, employee health and safety, labour
standards, product and service responsibility or corruption that
had a significant impact on the Company or the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group measured and managed
its environmental performance in several aspects throughout its

operations.

A)

ENVIRONMENTAL

Emissions

The Group is a food and beverage, lifestyle and
entertainment industry which is principally engaged in
the operation of clubbing, entertainment and restaurants
in Hong Kong. Throughout the operating process the
relevant emission includes noise emission, light emission
and air emission.

a)

b)

Noise emission

The operation of our clubs, namely Volar and Fly,
naturally generates music noise emission in the
evenings. To minimize noise emission, the Group
installs noise pollution materials and structure.
The locations of our clubs are not in residential
crowded areas. Volar is situated basement location
in Lan Kwai Fong, a night entertainment district in
Hong Kong and Fly is located on Ice House Street
which is in Central.

The Group is not aware of any incidents of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to noise
emission.

Light Emission

The light emissions should not and do not cause
any disturbance to the public since all the featured
events are conducted inside our club. To minimize
light emission, the Group has complied with all the
relevant laws, ordinances, rules and regulations
in Hong Kong in our structural construction and
operation to ensure all the lighting systems are
properly installed.
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B 3

c)

HtERERHKS

The Group is not aware of any incidents of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group relating to light
emission.

Gas Emission

As cooking process involves fuel use, restaurant
operation inevitably generates exhaust gases.
To protect the vicinity environment, all of the
Group’s restaurants have strictly complied with
the oil fume and cooking odor requirements as
stipulated by Air Pollution Control Ordinance
(Chapter 311 of the laws of Hong Kong). The
Company is committed to executing effective gas
emissions control through the installation and the
use of appropriate and efficient filtering equipment
as well as organizing the regular inspection,
maintenance and repair of the ventilation system.

The sources of the greenhouse gases and the

relative emissions for the Company during the
Reporting Period are cited as below:

Fuel and Energy

w‘ﬁ}&ﬁu/

==

Electricity E5))

AREBI A MBAES TR E
T NBTEARRARE RS
BEKEATZENBR

c) REHHK

A REEBIZ S R E IR
BEETERRLELER - BR
EIDORR AREMEERY
BARETERSRE G (&
ABIEDIEINE) FTRE #hE
K REERIKARE ° AR BEAR
BBRERREREE BB B
BB AT E M REEBE N
2 - 3 ISR E R R ETTIR
& RENEE -

RIWEHRE  ARARRERE
KR K ABRAHEIRIE AT -

Group's annual
consumption of fuel
and energy Unit
$/§.w§)ﬁ&ﬁu/
i/éﬁ%i@LL

Total consumption

Kwh F ELEf 495,783

Group's intensity of greenhouse gases emission per year

AEBRAEREFTHNEE

Total amount for RERBEINRE
greenhouse gases
emission

Greenhouse gases BEREHREE

emissions intensity
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B -

Notes:

The above calculation is based on the reference and
tools provided by Environmental Protection Department.
https://www.carbon-footprint.hk/node/52.

Greenhouse gases emissions intensity is calculated by
dividing the total greenhouse gases emissions by the
total revenue of clubbing, entertainment and restaurant
business. The Group's total revenue of clubbing,
entertainment and restaurant business for the year
ended 31 May 2018 was approximately HK$85.3 million.

The Group’'s greenhouse gases emissions are
mainly produced from indirect emissions due to
electricity purchased from The Hong Kong Electric
Company Limited.

Sewage Discharges

During the Reporting Period, our entire Group's
clubbing and restaurants have been granted with the
water pollution control licenses by the Environmental
Protection Department of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“HKSAR"). To minimize the
environmental impact from the sewage discharge,
the Group has also installed adequate, efficient and
appropriate equipment to ensure the sewage has
been properly processed before discharge.

Water consumption statistic of the year ended 31
March 2018:

HTERERBSE

st

LA BRI ERBRRREZREN2ZEEAHR
KT EAE - 83 Bhttps://www.carbon-
footprint.hk/node/52 °

BER L??Fﬁﬁlfﬁt}ﬁ/ﬁ;ﬁ?f?@EFBKE%E
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£2018F5A31BIEFE REEEAHT 1R
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EEARAFBEENENELHNMEEE
i

d) ST
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RENZE ARETELE
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VSRR A E H =R o

HZE2018F3A31HILFERE
KEFET

Group's annual

\Water consumptions
FEKE
Water consumption

Water Consumption
Intensity

consumption of fuel
and energy Unit

Total consumption

REBRE LR
FEEEEN RS
FEKE cubic meter 375K 6,326
FEKERE cubic meter/ 74.2

HK$'m revenue

MHKBEETRE

Note:

Water consumption intensity is calculated by dividing
the total water consumption by the total revenue of
clubbing, entertainment and restaurant business. The
Group's total revenue of clubbing, entertainment and
restaurant business for the year ended 31 May 2018 was
approximately HK$85.3 million.
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B)

Use of Resources

The resources used by the Group are principally
attributed to electricity, water and paper consumed at the
back office and outlets.

Electricity is consumed during the daily business
operations from using electrical equipment. To promote
an environmental friendly office, the Group promotes
and advises several measures such as: i) employees are
encouraged to switch the electric equipment to energy-
saving mode such as the automatically power down of
printers and computers after a period of inactivity and
turn off lighting before leaving the office and outlets;
and ii) temperature switches are adopted to maintain the
workplaces at a reasonable temperature.

Although non-significant amounts of water is consumed
through the business activities, the Group also
encourages water saving by driving watersaving habits
and posting green messages in the workplace to remind
the employees to use water effectively.

The Group implements measures for reducing the
paper consumption such as: i) double-sided printing and
reuse of single side printed paper are encouraged; and
ii) encourage to use more e-channels to disseminate
corporate information.

SOCIAL
Employment

Employee is the foundation of success of the Group.
The Group is an equal opportunity employer and no
discrimination is tolerated on the basis of age, gender,
race, colour, sexual orientation, disability or marital
status.

The Company also prohibits any kinds of discrimination
at the workplace, which generally refer to the gender,
pregnancy, marital status, disability, family status, and
race in the practices for human resources. Other than
the policies for anti-discrimination, the Company provides
fair opportunities for all staff members.
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The total number of employees and the distribution on
demographics as of 31 May 2018 have been depicted as
below:

R2018F5A31H EERHLEES

HAMERAT

Total number of employees
and distribution

EERH KA
No. of Occupied
Gender employee percentage (%)
1] EBEAH PG B 9 (%)
Male 3 71 56.8
Female Z 54 43.2
No. of Occupied
Job type employee percentage (%)
TR EBEAZ PG B 5 (%)
Full Time 2 67 53.6
Part Time FRE 58 46.4
No. of Occupied
Age range employee percentage (%)
FiFi[E EE AR PG B 5 (%)
17 - 30 17Z305% 66 52.8
31 -40 31E408% 30 24.0
41 - 50 41%E5053% 21 16.8
51 - 64 51%645% 8 6.4
Total number of
employee BEEBH 125 100.0

The Group aims to provide a harmonious and respectful FRBHHETSEERS  BEREFN
working environment for the employees through BEREEAABE BF  &£HEERAHN
competitive remuneration packages including basic WEMSE (BRELRT 2 A &
salary, commissions, holidays, group insurance and B SRR EEES) FAEERH
mandatory provident fund that are comparable to the REBAENZEEEN TIERT - KM
market standard and structured to commensurate with FEHETR EERSAFES
individual responsibilities, qualifications, experiences and BAg 5 R B R G IR KR
performance. Periodical review is conducted and the

appraisal result provides basis for annual salary review

and promotion appraisal.
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The employment contract specified the terms including
scope of work, wages/allowances, working hours, rest
days, dismissal and other benefits and welfare to the
staff. To stay competitive, the Group's base salaries are
within industry norms.

Health and Safety

The Group realises that ensuring the health and safety of
employees are very important to the business activities
and therefore makes every effort to build and maintain a
working environment which is free of workplace health
and safety incidents.

The Group follows safety manuals issued by the
Occupational Safety of Health Council which set out
work safety measures to prevent common accidents
which could happen in the outlets. Managers are
responsible to ensure compliance of safety, hygiene and
fire requirements by conducting checks and inspections
of the premises regularly such as fire exit passageway
shall be kept clear from obstruction. Fire extinguishers
and other equipment shall be kept at the correct location
and that they are accessible and remain free from
obstruction.

The Group has engaged a third-party security company for
the clubs which will provide a team of 24 security staff,
working under the supervision of the club managers. The
roles of the security team cover performing patrolling,
attending the scene and liaising with customers to stop
any potential fights in case of arguments or any fights
or other suspicious circumstances, and reporting fights,
drug use, theft and harassments to the police when
necessary. The Group has established safety and anti-
crime manual, which is implemented strictly by the
security team. The club managers are responsible for
coordinating with the security team.

The Group implements headcounts and identity checking
procedures at the entrance of the premises of the clubs
to monitor the number of guests inside the premises
and whether the customers are above 18 years old
when entering into the clubs. In order to spot potential
illegal activities such as fights, drug abuse or theft at
an early stage, over 20 CCTVs are installed inside the
club premises. The security team will attend the scene
investigate immediately if any suspicious circumstance
arises or stop any potential fight inside the premises
once identified.
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Development and Training

As part of the Group’s initiatives for improving business
performance and encouraging personal development of
the staff, the Group strives to provide comprehensive
development to the employees.

The Group has provided training across different
operational functions, including induction training for new
employees, technical training, and training to enhance
the employees’ knowledge, skill level and quality when
performing their duties. For the bartenders and cooks,
the Group encourages them to take courses to further
enhance their technical skills. The senior management
also gives regular training to the staff in relation to
customer service skills.

Supply Chain Management

Suppliers have a direct impact on the Group's
sustainability performance. The Group’'s suppliers mainly
include beverage and food suppliers.

The Group selects the major suppliers based on a set
of criteria which includes product and service quality,
cost, reputation, service, agility, delivery efficiency, past
performance and relationship with the Group. Such
supplier selection criteria ensures that the Group can
secure continual supply of ingredients of consistent
quality, identify the source of supply promptly, and
maintain flexibility in stock levels. Generally, the Group
would not procure from the suppliers unless they pass
the selection criteria.

The operating managers are primarily responsible for
monitoring the level of food and beverage and making
orders. Each of the outlets place purchase orders with
the procurement staff which then place orders with
the relevant suppliers. Upon delivery of the items to
the outlets, the staff checks the time of delivery, the
brand and type, quantity and quality of deliveries against
the delivery notes or invoices and the orders before
acceptance. The Group also inspects the best-by date
and condition of the food ingredients, and if they fall
below our quality control standards, the Group would
return them to the suppliers.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group had not
experienced any significant problems with the quality of
beverage and food products provided by the suppliers,
any material limitations in the supply nor any shortage of
beverage and food products. The Group believes that the
supply chain management and procedures can ensure
the safety of the supply chain.

Product Responsibility

Considering the importance of continuous customers’
satisfaction and support, the Group is committed to
providing customers with high quality services and
products. The Group provides training and guidelines
to its staff on service related areas such as beverage
and food handling and personal hygiene to enhance
the quality of services provided to the customers.
All frontline service staff are trained to be courteous,
competent and responsive and to provide cordial
hospitality to customers. The outlets staff are required to
be professionally uniformed during all working hours. The
operating managers hold daily briefing sessions with all
front-line service staffs on the daily operations of outlets.
In these briefing sessions, the managers would review
staff performance and reflect the customers’ feedbacks.
Such daily performance reviews assist the front-line
service staff in maintaining and improving service levels.
The Group strives to promote customer satisfaction
through responding to their comments and feedbacks.
The front-line service staff are required to treat customer
requests, enquiries or complaints promptly and seriously.
In case of any customer complaint in relation to beverage
or food or quality of services, the relevant operating
managers would take initiatives to investigate and resolve
the matter and attend to the customers promptly.

If any staff receives a complaint from a customer, he
shall report to his supervisor, usually the operating
manager, who would review and understand the matter
with the relevant customer and offer remedial proposals
to the customer. If the complaint cannot be resolved on
site or if a complaint has been received through emails,
the operating managers will investigate the incident
and file a report to the management with solutions
to improve or avoid similar incidents in the future. An
explanation will be sent to the relevant customer to
ensure the matter would be resolved and to maintain a
good customer relationship. The Group management will
review the complaints and arrange necessary training to
the staff to consistently improve the operation of outlets.
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Data Privacy

The Group has implemented certain internal control
measures in ensuring the confidentiality of the operation
data so as to protect the suppliers, business partners,
customers and itself. The Group's employment contract,
staff handbook and internal control manual clearly
define the requirements in relation to protecting the
Group's data. For example, i) staffs are only allowed
to access, retrieve, store and/or copy computer data
that are necessary and directly related to their work;
ii) any unauthorized access, retrieval, storage or copy
of computer data, as well as unauthorized transfer
and disclosure of data to third parties, are strictly
prohibited and may lead to summary dismissal; and
iii) administrative department is tasked with the
implementation of a practical and reliable mechanism to
ensure security of all data contained in computers and to
protect data against unauthorized access or retrieval.

Anti-corruption

Corruption, deception, bribery, forgery, extortion, money-
laundering and any other kinds of business fraud are
strictly prohibited and fully investigated by the Audit
Committee. In every business operation, employees
and the management must demonstrate integrity.
No tolerance is given to fraud. According to the staff
handbook and internal control manual established by
the Group, policy is established to govern investigation
and follow-up procedures of reported fraud incidents.
To enhance the governance of the Group, periodic and
systematic fraud risk assessments are conducted. Any
abnormality should be reported to the Audit Committee
for investigation. Whistle-blowing channel is also
established for the reporting of violations of professional
conducts.

Community Investment

The Group cares about its community, and is willing
to give the helping hands to the needy in order to
promote the harmony and stability of the society. The
management continues to focus on the needs of the
society, and endeavour to enhance the sustainability of
the community.
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The Board presents its annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 May 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 24.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
Group is a food and beverage and entertainment group
which principally engaged in the operation of clubbing and
entertainment and restaurants business in Hong Kong.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's performance by the principal
activities and geographical locations of operations for the year
ended 31 May 2018 is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 May 2018 are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 69 to
146 of this annual report.

The Directors did not recommend payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 May 2018.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

No interest was capitalised by the Group during the year ended
31 May 2018.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 May 2018, the Company’'s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders comprising share premium, capital
reserve and accumulated losses, amounted to approximately
HK$38,479,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 May 2018 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester (Chairman)
Mr. Lau Sze Yuen

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Kan Sze Man

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Sui Chi
Mr. Li Lap Sun
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy

The terms of office of each Director are subject to retirement
by rotation in accordance with articles of association of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 25 to 30 in the
section headed "“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management”.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester and Ms. Lau Sze Yuen, being
the executive Directors, Mr. Kan Sze Man, being the non-
executive Director, and Mr. Wong Sui Chi, Mr. Li Lap Sun and
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy, being the independent non-executive
Directors, has entered into a service contract or a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 7 April 2017 (the "Listing Date"”) and shall
continue thereafter unless terminated by either party giving to
the other not less than three months’ notice in writing.

TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the independent non-executive Directors were appointed
for a specific terms subject to the relevant provisions of the
articles of association or any other applicable laws whereby the
Directors shall vacate or retire from their office.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS

As at 31 May 2018, Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester, an executive
Director had the following interests in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company and its associated corporations, within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO") as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of SFO:

Long positions in shares of the Company

Capacity/Nature of Interest
7,/ HmItE

Name of Director

EENS

Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester
RIBELE

Interest in controlled corporation

SRR

During the year ended 31 May 2018, there were no debt
securities issued by the Group at any time. Save as disclosed
herein, as at 31 May 2018, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company or their associates had any interests
and short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which each of them has taken or deemed
to have taken under the provisions of the SFO); or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
into the register referred to therein; or which were required,
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY

To the best of Director’'s knowledge, at 31 May 2018, the
following shareholders had interests in the shares or underlying
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shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in shares of the Company

Name

e,/ 5
Aplus Concepts Limited Mote 1) (1)

Ng Shing Joe Kester Mete 2
B 4 (Wir2)

Louey Andrea Alice Mot 3

T Yk 75 (Wi3)

Chung Cho Yee, Mico Mete 4
SEIB L (W)

Digisino Assets Limited Mete 4 (i4)
Earnest Equity Limited Mete 4 (i)
CSI Properties Limited ™Mete ¥

BN R E A IR A F] (Hi5)

Phoenix Year Limited Mete & (7:6)

Capacity/Nature of
Interest

LLVg: Eolia

Beneficial owner

EmEBA

Interest in controlled corporation
X EERER

Interest of spouse

FiB s

Interest in controlled corporation
X EEER

Interest in controlled corporation
X EEER

Interest in controlled corporation
X EE R

Interest in controlled corporation
X EEER

Beneficial owner

EaBBA

The entire issued share capital of Aplus Concepts Limited is
wholly-owned by Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester.

Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester is deemed to be interested in the
same number of shares held by Aplus Concepts Limited under
the SFO.

Ms. Louey Andrea Alice is the spouse of Mr. Ng Shing Joe
Kester. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Louey Andrea Alice is deemed
to be interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Ng
Shing Joe Kester is deemed to be interested under the SFO.

Mr. Chung Cho Yee, Mico (“Mr. Chung”) owns the entire
interest of Digisino Assets Limited (“Digisino”) which in turn
owns the entire interest in Earnest Equity Limited (“Earnest
Equity”). Earnest Equity and Mr. Chung own approximately
49.87% and 0.03% of the entire issued shares capital of
CSI Properties Limited respectively. Therefore, Mr. Chung,
Digisino and Earnest Equity are deemed to be interested in
the same number of shares held by CSI Properties Limited
under SFO.

CSI Properties Limited is deemed to be interested in the same
number of shares held by Phoenix Year Limited under the SFO.

The entire issued share capital of Phoenix Year Limited is wholly-
owned by CSI Properties Limited.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 May 2018 and up to the date of this
report, save as the directorship of Mr. Kan Sze Man, a non-
executive Director, in Surplus King Hotel Enterprises Limited
(@ company incorporated in Hong Kong) which is principally
engaged in the operation of a hotel including an all-day dining
restaurant and a bar, the Directors, including the Independent
Non-executive Directors, are not aware of any business or
interest of the directors, the management of the Company and
their respective close associates (as defined under the GEM
Listing Rules) that compete or may compete with the business
of the Group and any other conflict of interest which any such
person had or might have with the Group.

On 14 March 2017 Aplus Concept Limited and Mr. Ng Shing
Joe Kester (collectively the “Controlling Shareholders”) have
entered into with and in favour of the Company (for itself and
as trustee for its subsidiaries) the deed of non-competition (the
“Deed of Non-competition”). The Company has received an
annual declaration from the Controlling Shareholders in respect
of their full compliance with the terms of the Deed of Non-
competition. The independent non-executive Directors have also
reviewed on behalf of the Company the compliance with the
Deed of Non-competition and are satisfied that the Controlling
Shareholders have fully complied with the terms of the Deed of
Non-competition.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as those interests disclosed under the paragraph entitled
“Connected Transactions”, there is no contract of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which the Directors had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of
the year or at any time during the year ended 31 May 2018.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Our Directors confirm that the following transaction will
continually constitute continuing connected transactions for our
Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Provision of marketing and promotion services to the
Group

Model Genesis International Management Limited (“Model
Genesis”) has been providing marketing and promotion services
to the Group. On 14 March 2017 Model Genesis has entered
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Report of the Directors

in to a master agreement (the “Master Agreement”) with our
Company, pursuant to which Model Genesis agreed to provide
the marketing and promotion services including organization
of featured events, engagements of DJs and preparation of
publication materials (the “Marketing and Promotion Services”)
to our Group from the Listing Date to 31 May 2019.

As Model Genesis is owned as to 30% by Phoenix Year Limited
and 70% by Aplus Concepts Limited, being our substantial
shareholder and controlling shareholder, respectively, it is an
associate of each of Aplus Concepts Limited, Mr. Ng Shing
Joe Kester, Phoenix Year Limited and CSI| Properties Limited
and a connected person of our Company. The provision of the
Marketing and Promotion Services will constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company pursuant to Rule 20.14
of the GEM Listing Rule.

Under the premise of compliance with the Master Agreement,
our Group and Model Genesis shall further enter into separate
individual contracts or purchase orders in respect of specific
marketing and promotion services and determine the specific
terms and conditions of the marketing and promotion services,
such as services fee to be charged by Model Genesis (the
“Services Fees”).

The Services Fees would be payable a monthly basis pursuant
to the Master Agreement. The terms and conditions of the
transactions contemplated under the Master Agreement shall be
on normal commercial terms, negotiated on arm’s length basis,
fair and reasonable and no less favorable to our Group than those
offered to other independent third parties for similar services.

The maximum aggregated annual caps for the transactions are
HK$0.6 million HK$3.4 million and HK$3.4 million for the three
years ending 31 May 2019, respectively.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 May 2018 was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company
and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in
Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.
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As at 31 May 2018, the Group had 125 employees. The Directors
and senior management receive compensation in the form of
salaries, benefits in kind and discretionary bonuses with reference
to salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
the performance of the Group. The Company also reimburses them
for expenses which are necessarily and reasonably incurred for
the provision of services to the Group or executing their functions
in relation to the operations of the Group. The Company regularly
reviews and determines the remuneration and compensation
package of the Directors and senior management, by reference to,
among other things, market level of salaries paid by comparable
companies, the respective responsibilities of the Directors and the
performance of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year ended 31
May 2018.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Due to the nature of the Group's business, the majority of
customers consist of retail customers from the general public.
As such, the Directors consider that it is not practicable to
identify the five largest customers of the Group for the year
ended 31 May 2018.

The information in respect of the Group’s purchases attributable
to the major suppliers during the year ended 31 May 2018 as
follows:

The largest supplier BAMIER
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AARHEE RS B

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital, had a beneficial interest
in any of the Group's five largest supplier and customers.

60 \ BCI Group Holdings Limited &M %&EABR QA

M2018F5H31H  AEEF126%EES ES
hafERERRBeNE s Y
s R BISTEAL - R 2B A LR A BT
HEB - REARARTEENEEMETE - K
REREENE AT S ERERF AT E
EESEERITEBERMEENNEREGRE
Y - AAE 28 (HhaE) TR A A%
NEFEHOMIEKE EENEBPETREAEE
MEERE THRITAETEEREREEE
BN R A E RS -

BEEEH

HE2018F5A31 B IFFEWEF T S IFAET
AFRARRN B2 A AEBD EBHNEIERITH
BH e

FERFRHER

RRAKREXREOEE  RANEFAZEHE
RREEFEFP-HIt - EFRR HAAEE
EHZE20185F5 A31HIEFEMN R AT I AA]
T

BT EHERNEE2018F5831HILFEE
Pt AREBREBENERIDT

Percentage of the Group's
total purchases

EASEERBEEA DL

53.4%
69.6%

REFMA SEREARRCEITRAER
5% M E E  RFMH B A REABRRREM
AEBAAREREEPTHE Batk -



Report of the Directors

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the listed securities of the Company
during the year ended 31 May 2018.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest
practicable date prior to issue of this report, the Company has
maintained the sufficient public float under the GEM Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (“Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolutions passed by the Company's
shareholders on 14 March 2017 (“Adoption Date”) for the
primary purpose of granting options to eligible participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include any employees,
any executives, non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executives Directors), supplier, customer, advisers and
consultants of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued under
the Scheme and any other schemes of the Company (excluding
options lapsed pursuant to the Scheme and any other schemes
of the Company) must not exceed 80,000,000 shares,
representing 10% of the issued shares of the Company at the
date of the annual report.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued to each
eligible participant under the Scheme in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the issued shares of the Company
unless approved in advance by the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting.

Any option to be granted under the Scheme to a Director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or
to any of their respective associates must be approved by all
independent non-executive Directors of the Company (excluding
independent non-executive Director who is the grantee). In
addition, any option to be granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive Director of the Company or to
any of their respective associates which will result in the shares
issued and to be issued in excess of 0.1% of the issued shares
or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000
within any 12-month period is subject to approval by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
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The offer of a grant of options under the Scheme may be
accepted within 21 days from the date of the offer and by
payment of HK$1.00 as consideration for the grant of an option.
An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period as to be determined
and notified by the Directors to each grantee, but shall end in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of the grant of
option.

The Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing on the listing date of the Company.

The exercise price is determined by the Directors and shall be
at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Company's
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet
on the date of the offer of grant of an option, which must be
a trading day; (i) the average closing price of the Company's
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer of grant of an option; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company's shares.

No options have been granted under the Scheme since its
adoption.

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed Lego Corporate Finance Limited
("Lego”) to be the compliance adviser. Lego, being the sponsor
to the listing, has declared its independence pursuant to Rule
6A.07 of the GEM Listing Rules. Save as provided for under
the underwriting agreements relating to the share offer, neither
Lego nor any of its associates and none of the directors or
employees of Lego who have been involved in providing advice
to the Company as the sponsor, has or may, as a result of the
share offer, have any interest in any securities of the Company
or any other companies of the Group (including options or rights
to subscribe for such securities).

The compliance adviser’'s appointment is for a period
commencing on the listing date and ending on the date on
which the Company complies with Rule 18.03 of the GEM
Listing Rules in respect of the despatch of its annual report
of the financial results for the second full financial year
commencing after the listing date, i.e. for the year ending
31 May 2019, or until the compliance adviser agreement is
terminated, whichever is earlier.
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Report of the Directors

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of
this Report of the Directors, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any of the
directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) or an associated company (if made by the Company).

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2018
have been audited by BDO Limited and a resolution for the re-
appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION ON WEBSITES

This annual report is available for viewing on the website of
Stock Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk and on the website of the
Company at www.bcigroup.com.hk.

By order of the Board

Ng Shing Joe Kester
Chairman

27 August 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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BDO

BB EESETMERM

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BCI GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of BCI
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 69 to
146, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 May 2018, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 May 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
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Independent Auditor’s Report

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

As at 31 May 2018, as a result of the acquisition of Legend
Vision Limited and its subsidiary in 2015, the Group had
goodwill of HK$2,209,000, relating to a cash-generating unit
engaged in the operation of clubbing business in Hong Kong
("Legend Vision CGU").

Management concluded that there is no impairment on
goodwill. This impairment assessment was based on a value in
use calculation that required significant estimations with respect
to the underlying cash flows and discount rate, in particular the
future revenue growth. An independent external valuation was
obtained in respect of the impairment assessment on goodwill
in order to support management’s estimates.

We identified the impairment of goodwill as a key audit matter
because of the significant estimation uncertainty involved in the
determination of the recoverable amount of the Legend Vision
CGU and the significance of the carrying amount of the Legend
Vision CGU (including the allocated goodwill) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Refer to Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements and
accounting policy in Note 4(k).

How our audit addressed the key audit matter:

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of goodwill included:

Evaluating the independent external valuer's competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

- Assessing the valuation methodology for its
appropriateness;

- Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based
on our knowledge of the business and industry; and

- Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved budgets and considering the reasonableness of
these budgets.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
Company’s annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. WWe have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS® RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This
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Independent Auditor’s Report

report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the
terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

- evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

- conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
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audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

- evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. \We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chan Wing Fai

Practising Certificate Number P05443

Hong Kong, 27 August 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AEEHWSER

For the Year Ended 31 May 2018 & Z20185 831 H It FE

Notes 2018 2017
Hiat 20184 20174
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Revenue e 7 85,343 96,164
Finance income B E WA 8 505 =
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA (17,610) (19,117)
Other income and gains N NS G 9 377 73
Property rentals and related MR RABAREZ
expenses (25,180) (22,975)
Advertising and marketing expenses B4 RIS HEER X (14,094) (11,915)
Employee benefits expenses EERAAZ 10 (27,244) (18,311)
Depreciation e 10 (4,672) (4,253)
Listing expenses FR 10 - (15,532)
Fair value change on financial assets AT Bz AlBzEH
at fair value through profit or loss CREEAFEED 10 (446) =
Other expenses HEA 12 (20,639) (13,064)
Finance cost RUE A 13 (285) =
Loss before income tax expense BRET1S BRI SZ AT B 1R 10 (23,945) (8,930)
Income tax expense FriS iR 14 (1,828) (847)
Loss and total comprehensive FREBERZAKA
income for the year 1E%ER (25,773) (9,777)
Loss and total comprehensive AT ATREEER
income for the year attributable EEkEEmERA
to: FEbE
- Owners of the Company . WNCIEZZE DN (25,135) (9,513)
- Non-controlling interests — JEPE R A (638) (264)
(25,773) (9,777)
Loss per share attributable to owners AN BIHEA AEL FIL
of the Company &8
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) —ERNEE (B) 16 (3.14) (1.51)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
ma BB ARR X

As at 31 May 2018 7201845 H31H

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k2 FET FEL
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment YIZE -~ R KRR 17 7,019 7.405
Prepayment for acquisition of W2 ~ R &
property, plant and equipment RBETENROR 18 1,810 =
Other receivables H A e I RIR 18 3,252 4,902
Deferred tax assets FEFIAE = 19 = 1,818
Goodwill EES 20 2,209 2,209
14,290 16,334
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 21 775 522
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H A UK 18 15,938 7,680
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFTABTH
through profit or loss SREE 22 19,990 =
Amount due from a related JrE I Ba B A B FAR
company 23 82 176
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 24 33,508 60,672
Restricted bank deposits 2R BRI TR 25 2,146 =
Tax recoverable AU e IE 678 =
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 73117  69.0%0
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk EMEN IR 26 13,989 15,127
Bank borrowings RITERX 27 30,667 =
Current tax liabilities BNEAFIE & & - 1,620
_________________________________________________________________________________________ wpss 1677
Netcurrentassets = *BEEF& 28461 52,303
Total assets less current liabilities @HEERABAE® 42,751 68,637
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
__Otherpayables . AMBEOR 26 ] 1477 1290
Net assets REE 41,574 67,347
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI KR

As at 31 May 2018 7201845 H31H

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M aE FET FET
Equity e
Share capital %N 28 8,000 8,000
Reserves 1 29 34,596 59,731
Equity attributable to owners of the — ARARIEEA AEI(H#ER
Company 42,596 67,731
Non-controlling interests IR M 30 (1,022) (384)
Total equity RS 41,574 67347
On behalf of the board of directors REREZ=S

Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester

REBEXE
Director

EF

Ms. Lau Sze Yuen
ZIRmz+
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEREREH R

For the year ended 31 May 2018 #Z=2018%F5A31HILF /&

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRFRE AR
Retained
earnings/ Non-
Share (accumulated controlling
Share capital premium* loss)* Total interests Total
RERA/
e RouE (2iFR)* & FERER @t
HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000
FEn TAn TAn FE7 A7 &7
(Note 26)  (Note 29(a))  (Note 29(c))
(H:228)  (Wii#290)  (BiiEo9r)
At 1 June 2016 R2016%6A 18 - - 11,974 1,974 - 11,974
Loss and total comprehensive income for the ~ FREERZARAES
year = = (9,513) (9,513) (264) (9,777)
Transactions with owners: EEEARRS
Shares issued pursuant to the RESAETRA
reorganisation (Note 2811) (Hrt2s0) -+ 5,100 - 5,100 - 5,100
Capitalisation issue of shares (Note 28)ii) RAEAIES
(Hi280) 6,000 (6,000) - - - =
Shares issued pursuant to the share offer RERHEERTRA
(Note 28Jii)) WiEZ ) 2,000 66,000 - 68,000 - 68,000
Transaction costs attributable to the share BOEERERFHA
offer (Note 28/ii)) (H1228lii) = (8,575) = (8,575) = (8,575)
Disposal of equity interest to a non- BEE C Ity
controlling interest (Note 30) (Hi#30) - - 745 745 (120) 625
8,000 56,525 45 65,270 (120) 65,150
At 31 May 2017 and 1 June 2017 R07EsANBR
2017E6A1R 8,000 56,525 3,206 67731 (384) 67347
Loss and total comprehensive income for the ~ FREERZERALE
year - - (25,135) (25,135) (638) (25,773)
At 31 May 2018 M2018%5A31H 8,000 56,525 (21,929) 42,5% (1,022) 41,574
The balance represents an amount less than HK$1,000. AR REL I, 0008 T ©
# The total of these balances represents “reserves” in the *# ZEERNBREIERA M BIRARTH [ F#
consolidated statement of financial position. &l
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mMEEHEEARE R

For the year ended 31 May 2018 ZE201845H31 8 I FE

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Cash flows from operating activities RETHMEHRESRE
Loss before income tax expense FRETS T AT B E (23,945) (8,930)
Adjustments for: KEEHEE
Depreciation of property, plant and VI - BB KRBT E
equipment 4,672 4,253
Bank interest income RITH B A (177) =
Finance cost R ®N 285 -
Written off of property, plant and WEEYI % - BB KR
equipment 912 -
Provision of impairment on trade and B 5 K& H b e SR IE R E
other receivables s 45 =
Fair value change on financial assets at BEAFEFAEZNS M
fair value through profit and loss BEANFEZE) 446 -
Reversal of provision of reinstatement B BUE1E K AN
cost (200) -
Operating loss before working capital LEE B L EE
changes (17,962) (4,677)
Increase in inventories FEEM (253) (168)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 & E A U GRIEIE AN (6,653) (3,904)
Increase in financial assets at fair value BATEGF ABENEREE
through profit or loss N (20,436) =
Decrease/(increase) in related parties RaE 5 R IER A
receivables (3&Eh0) 94 (176)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other B 5 REAMEFRIE
payables CRA) /1 m (1,701) 902
Cash used in operations REFMAES (46,911) (8,023)
Income tax expense paid BENEHRX (2,308) (1,858)
Net cash used in operating activities RETHFMARSFE (49,219) (9,881)
Cash flows from investing activities RETEFMERERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BB = K& E (4,548) (1,507)
Prepayment for acquisition of property, W B2 ~ R K A
plant and equipment SELNE S (1,810) =
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, W= - R Kkt
plant and equipment BEffiEE - (173)
Bank interest received BUERTTHE 177 -
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFTAREFHE (6,181) (1,680)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEHETRER

For the year ended 31 May 2018 #Z=2018%F5A31HILF /&

2018 2017
2018 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Cash flows from financing activities METBMERESRE
Repayments to related parties BT - (9,313)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIBERPATIS R 30,667 =
Increase in restricted bank deposits PR HIER 1 T 17 RGN (2,146) =
Issuance of new shares pursuant to the RIEEAEITHR
reorganisation (Note 28(i)) (K1aE28(i)) - 5,100
Net proceeds from issue of shares upon AR B E R TAR DD T
share offer (Note 28(iii)) SRR
(Bt a£28(iii) ) - 59,425
Interest paid BEATF A (285) -
Net cash generated from financing RMETBHAEREER
activities 28,236 55,212
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash RERBREZEY (RL)
equivalents EFEE (27,164) 43,651
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHRERKRESZEY
of the year 60,672 17.021
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the FRREERKREZEY
year 33,508 60,672
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

BCI Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands, as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law
(as revised) of the Cayman lIslands. Its shares are listed
on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of its registered office
is PO Box 1350, Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman lIslands and its principal place
of business in Hong Kong is located at Basement, Ho
Lee Commercial Building, No. 38-44 D'Aguilar Street,
Central, Hong Kong. The Company is an investment
holding company and the Group is principally engaged
in the operation of clubbing, entertainment and catering
business in Hong Kong. The Company and its subsidiaries
are collectively referred to as the “Group”.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
June 2017

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 12,
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Disclosure of Interests in
Cycle Other Entities

Except as explained below, the adoption of these
new/revised HKFRSs has no material impact on
the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 - Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional
disclosure that will enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities.

The adoption of the amendments has led to the
additional disclosure presented in the note to
the consolidated statement of cash flows, Note
36(b). Consistent with the transition provisions of
the amendments, the Group has not disclosed
comparative information for the prior year.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT'D)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’'s consolidated financial
statements, have been issued, but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply
these changes on the date they become effective.

HKFRS 9

AU HREERESR
Amendments to HKFRS 9
BAPBmEEAEIR (BFIA)
HKFRS 15

BB R EERE 1558
Amendments to HKFRS 15

TRIA

BEE &K

HKFRS 15) !
BN HREERE159E (BFIA)
Amendments to HKAS 19
BB SEERE 1958 (B5TA)
HK(IFRIC) — Int 22
B (BB BHRE2RELZES)
—RRBE225
HK(IFRIC) — Int 23

{ERT ~ HRR A

2.

sTE2

KMERMBREER ([FEMK
wEEA]) (/)

(b)

Financial Instruments '

12

B (BRTBHE2EZES) FriS 4 BR 12 1) T 142
— 2 EE 235,

HKFRS 16 Leases ?

BB HREERE 1698 e

HKFRS (Amendments)
BB R EER] (BE]4)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019

Except as described below, the directors do not
anticipate that the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs will have material impact on the
Group's financial performance and position and/
or on the disclosures to the Group's consolidated
financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT'D)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (CONT'D)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows (the business model
test) and that have contractual terms that give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test)
are generally measured at amortised cost. Debt
instruments that meet the contractual cash flow
characteristics test are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")
if the objective of the entity's business model
is both to hold and collect the contractual cash
flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities may
make an irrevocable election at initial recognition
to measure equity instruments that are not held
for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity
instruments are measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL").

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss
impairment model for all financial assets not
measured at FVTPL replacing the incurred loss
model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to better
reflect their risk management activities in financial
statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for
financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, where
the amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of the liability is recognised
in other comprehensive income unless that would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in
HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT'D)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (CONT'D)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (CONT'D)

Based on the Group's financial instruments and
risk management policies as at 31 May 2018, the
directors of the Company anticipate the following
potential impact on initial application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

o Trade receivable carried at amortised cost
as disclosed in Note 18, are held within
a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding. Accordingly,
these financial assets will continue to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost
upon the application of HKFRS 9.

o The Group's listed debt securities currently
classified to be measured and accounted
for at FVTPL, which satisfy the conditions
for classification as financial assets at
FVTPL, will not be significantly affected in
respect of the accounting treatment upon
the adoption of HKFRS 9. Changes in fair
value for these financial assets will be
recognised in profit or loss.

° All other financial assets and financial
liabilities will continue to be measured on
the same bases as are currently measured
under HKAS 39.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT'D)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (CONT'D)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (CONT'D)
Impairment:

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of the expected credit loss
model of HKFRS 9 will result in earlier provision
of credit losses which are not yet incurred in
relation to the Group's financial assets measured
at amortised cost and other items that are subject
to the impairment provisions upon application of
HKFRS 9 by the Group. However, management
expects the effect would not be significant.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 - Prepayment
Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be
measured at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income if specified
conditions are met - instead of at fair value
through profit or loss.

The directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of the amendments will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes existing
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts”
and related interpretations.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONT'D)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (CONT'D)
HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (CONT'D)
HKFRS 15 requires the application of a b-step
approach to revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer
o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations

in the contract
o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to
each performance obligation

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when each
performance obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the
current approach taken under HKFRS. The standard
also significantly enhances the qualitative and
quantitative disclosures related to revenue.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT'D)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (CONT'D)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (CONT'D)

The directors intend to use the cumulative effect
method of transition to HKFRS 15. Under the
cumulative effect method, the Group can apply the
standard only from the date of initial application
(i,e. 1 June 2018). The Group is not required
to adjust prior year comparatives and do not
need to consider contracts that have completed
prior to the date of initial application. Broadly,
the figures reported from the date of initial
application will be the same as if the standard had
always been applied, but figures for comparative
periods will remain on the previous basis. The
Group has assessed the impact of HKFRS 15
and expects that application of the standard will
have no significant impact, when applied, on
the Group's consolidated financial statements.
However, the application of HKFRS 15 may result
in more disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments HKFRS 15 - Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarification to
HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included
clarifications on identification of performance
obligations; application of principal versus agent;
licenses of intellectual property; and transition
requirements.

The directors anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may have an impact on
the amounts reported on revenue as the timing
of revenue recognition may be affected by the
new standard, and more disclosures relating to
revenue is required. Currently, the directors are
in the midst of assessing the financial impact of
the application of HKFRS 15 and a reasonable
estimate of the effect will be available once the
detailed review is completed.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT'D)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (CONT'D)

HKFRS 16 - Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and related
interpretations, introduces a single lessee
accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with
a term of more 12 months, unless the underlying
asset is of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS
16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use
asset representing its right to use the underlying
leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a
lessee should recognise depreciation of the right-
of use asset and interest on the lease liability,
and also classifies cash repayments of the lease
liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and presents them in the statement of
cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the
lease liability are initially measured on a present
value basis. The measurement includes non-
cancellable lease payments and also includes
payments to be made in optional periods if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option
to extend the lease, or to exercise an option to
terminate the lease. This accounting treatment is
significantly different from the lessee accounting
for leases that are classified as operating leases
under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17 Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases
or finance leases, and to account for those two
types of leases differently.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT'D)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (CONT'D)

HKFRS 16 - Leases (CONT'D)

Total operating lease commitments of the Group in
respect of office premises, clubs and restaurants
as at 31 May 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$33,241,000. The directors anticipate the
adoption of HKFRS 16 as compared with the
current accounting policy may affect the Group's
results. The directors anticipate a significant
portion of the lease commitments in the above
amount of HK$33,241,000 will be required to
be recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities.

The standard will become mandatory for financial
years commencing on or after 1 January 2019. At
this stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the "HKFRS") and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “"GEM
Listing Rules”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
certain financial assets, which are measured at fair
values as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.
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31 May 2018 201855 431H

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D)

(c)

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which
is the same as the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries, and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousands, except when
otherwise indicated.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Group. Inter-
company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred,
in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from
the effective dates of acquisition or up to the
effective dates of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (CONT'D)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of
assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer.
The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are principally measured at acquisition-
date fair value. The Group's previously held
equity interest in the acquiree, if any, is re-
measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit
or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary either at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed
unless they are incurred in issuing equity
instruments in which case the costs are deducted
from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained
within the measurement period (@ maximum of 12
months from the acquisition date) about the fair
value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified
as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or
loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(a)

(b)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (CONT'D)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the gain or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the
amount of those interests at initial recognition plus
such non-controlling interest’s share of subsequent
changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interests even
if this results in those non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
Company is able to exercise control. The Company
controls an investee if all three of the following
elements are present: power over the investee,
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee, and the ability to use its power to affect
those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that
there may be a change in any of these elements
of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(c)

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the
excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and
liabilities exceeds the aggregate of the fair
value of consideration paid, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree,
the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated
to each of the relevant cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, by
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable
amount (see Note 4(k)), and whenever there is an
indication that the cash-generating unit may be
impaired.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(c)

(d)

Goodwill (CONT'D)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro-
rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each
asset in the unit. However, the loss allocated to
each asset will not reduce the individual asset's
carrying amount to below its fair value less cost
of disposal (if measurable) or its value in use
(if determinable), whichever is the higher. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit
or loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of property, plant and
equipment includes its purchase price and the
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which
they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (CONT'D)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
so as to write off their cost net of expected
residual value over their estimated useful lives
on a straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual
value and depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Leasehold 20% and the lease term,
improvements whichever is the shorter
Furniture, fixtures 20%

and equipment

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is higher
than the asset’'s estimated recoverable amount if
any indication of impairment is identified.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and its carrying amount,
and is recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

Financial Instruments

(i) Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets
at initial recognition, depending on the
purpose for which the asset was acquired.
The Group's financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. Regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. A regular way purchase
or sale is a purchase or sale of a financial
asset under a contract whose terms require
delivery of the asset within the time frame
established generally by regulation or
convention in the marketplace concerned.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(e)

Financial Instruments (CONT'D)

(i)

Financial assets (CONT'D)

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

These assets include financial assets held
for trading. Financial assets are classified
as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments or financial
guarantee contracts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market.
They arise principally through the provision
of goods and services to customers (trade
debtors), and also incorporate other types
of contractual monetary assets. Subsequent
to initial recognition, they are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment
losses. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled
or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current
assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(e) Financial Instruments (CONT'D)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each
reporting period, whether there is any
objective evidence that financial asset is
impaired. Financial asset is impaired if
there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that has
occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset and that event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include:

o significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;
o a breach of contract, such as a

default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

o granting concession to a debtor
because of debtor's financial
difficulty;

o it becoming probable that the

debtor will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation.

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate,
where the effect of discounting is material.
The carrying amount of financial asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When any part of financial asset
is determined as uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for the
relevant financial asset.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(e)

Financial Instruments (CONT'D)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities
at amortised costs are initially measured at
fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
including trade payables, accruals and other
payables and amounts due to related parties
are recognised initially at their fair value,
net of directly attributable transaction costs
incurred are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss. Gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts or payments through the expected
life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity investment

Equity investments issued by the Company
are recorded of proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(e)

(f)

(g)

Financial Instruments (CONT'D)

(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when
the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

(vii) Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are
offset and the net amount is reported in
the consolidated statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost,
and subsequently at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is calculated using
the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at
bank and in hand, and short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(h)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as the lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets at their fair value or, if
lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding lease commitment is
shown as a liability. Lease payments are analysed
between capital and interest. The interest element
is charged to profit or loss over the period of
the lease and is calculated so that it represents
a constant proportion of the lease liability. The
capital element reduces the balance owed to the
lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating
leases are recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over
the term of the lease.

The land and buildings elements of property
leases are considered separately for the purposes
of lease classification.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(i)

(i)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the
acquisition, construction or production of any
qualifying asset which require a substantial period
of time to be ready for their intended use or sales,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.

Income earned on temporary investments of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on those assets is deducted from borrowing
cost capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, which it is probable will result in an
outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably
estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, the existence of
which will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more future events,
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(k)

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following
assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

o property, plant and equipment; and

° Investment in subsidiaries

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of
the fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under the HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
to the extent that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the reversal of impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that
HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows expected to be derived from the asset
or cash generating unit (see Note 4(c)), discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or cash generating unit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
(1 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits)
that are expected to be settled wholly
before twelve months after the end of
the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short
term employee benefits are recognised in
the year when the employees render the
related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss when the services
are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

e ® KW

31 May 2018 201855H31H

4, EFESFEEE)
n EEEN
(i) ERIEESREF
RHEESRNSEHR
BEREBARBGHSE
B & B\RE+ @A
NEBEENREERT
(BEBERR A ERSN) - 22 51
18 B & A i 8 8 12 £ 48
FAARTS O N AERR

(i)  REHRFEME
A 5% 5E SR R ET 84
YR B B R AR
BRENIERKRERRA
-

(i)  BEBEF
BfE B3k 1@ 1 5 AR £ B 1S e
B8 HR 4 52 5 18 F B ok
REEBEBERD R B
Ba A AR A (A
REERE)ER -

2018 Annual Report 43§ /97

7/



N

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e YRR W

31 May 2018 201855 431H

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(m)

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax
and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowable for income tax
purposes and is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the corresponding amounts used for
tax purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised
assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the
tax rates expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised based on
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value under
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured
using the tax rates that would apply on sale of
these investment properties at their carrying
amounts at the reporting date. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all
the economic benefits embodied in the property
over time, rather than through sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ® KW

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(m)

(n)

Income taxes (CONT'D)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss
except when they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income in which case the
taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or when they relate to items recognised
directly in equity in which case the taxes are also
recognised directly in equity.

Foreign currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”).

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of
the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non— monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.
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31 May 2018 201855 431H

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(n)

Foreign currency (CONT'D)

In the consolidated financial statements,
all individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into HK$. Assets and
liabilities have been translated into HK$ at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income
and expenses have been converted into HK$
at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising
from this procedure have been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the exchange reserve in equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a
foreign operation on or after 1 January 2005 are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the exchange
reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(o)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided
that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Sales of food and beverages

Revenue from sales of food and beverages
is recognised at the point of sale to
customers.

Prepayments from customers in respect
of the membership schemes operated
by the Group which are considered to be
unearned at the reporting are shown as
receipts in advance in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Revenue is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income based on effective
selling price when the relevant beverages
are sold to customers.

Revenue from services

Revenue from services (including tips,
entrance fees, cloakroom fees, photobooth
and event rental income) is recognised
when the services have been provided to
the customers.

Sponsorship income
Sponsorship income is recognised when:

° the promotion events have been
held;

o the services have been rendered,
and it is probable that the

sponsorship income will be granted
and the amount can be measured
reliably.
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31 May 2018 201855 431H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
(o) Revenue recognition (CONT'D)

(d) Management fee income
Management fee income is recognised
when services are rendered.

(e) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

(f) Entertainment income
Entertainment income is recognised when
services are rendered.

(p) Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management

personnel of the Group or the
Company'’s parent.
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31 May 2018 201855H31H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
(p) Related parties (CONT'D)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions apply:

(i)

(iii)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the group or to the group’s parent.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(p)

(a)

Related parties (CONT'D)

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decision
about resources allocation to the Group's
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major product and service
lines.

The measurement policies the Group use for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs, except interest income,
unallocated finance costs, and unallocated
corporate expenses, which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment, are not included in arriving at
the operating results of the operating segment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
Directors are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful life and residual value of an
item of property, plant and equipment, the Group has to
consider various factors, such as technical or commercial
obsolescence arising from changes or improvement in
production, or from a change in market demand for the
products or service output of the asset, expected usage
of the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care
and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits
on the use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life
of the asset is based on the experience of the Group
with similar assets that are used in similar way. The
Group will revise the depreciation charge where useful
lives are different to those previously estimated, or it
will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment loss for trade and other receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses of trade and
other receivables resulting from the inability of the
customers and other debtors to make the required
payments in accordance with accounting policy
stated in Note 4(e)(ii). The Group bases the estimates
on the ageing of the receivable balances, debtors’
creditworthiness and historical write-off experience. If
the financial condition of the customers and debtors
were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher
than estimated.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONT'D)

Impairment loss for non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of the reporting period
whether non-financial assets suffered any impairment in
accordance with accounting policy stated in Note 4(k).
The non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its
recoverable amount. The determination of recoverable
amount requires an estimation of future cash flows and
the selection of appropriate discount rates. Changes in
these estimates could have a significant impact on the
carrying value of the assets and could result in additional
impairment charge or reversal of impairment in future
periods, where applicable.

Impairment loss for goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the directors to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value.

Provision for reinstatement costs

Provision for reinstatement cost is estimated at the
inception of leasing property with reinstatement clause
and reassessed at the end of each reporting period
with reference to the latest available quotation from
independent contractors. Estimation based on current
market information may vary over time and could differ
from the actual reinstatement cost upon closures or
relocation of existing premises occupied by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONT'D)

Fair value measurement

The fair value measurement of the Group's financial
assets utilises market observable inputs and data as
far as possible. Inputs used in determining fair value
measurements are categorised into different levels based
on how observable the inputs used in the valuation
technique utilised are (the “fair value hierarchy”).

o Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

o Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other
than Level 1 inputs;

o Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from
market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a
significant effect on the fair value measurement of the
item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised in
the period they occur.

The Group measures financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 22) at fair value. For more detailed
information in relation to the fair value measurement,
please refer to the applicable notes.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision maker is defined as
executive directors of the Company. The Group has
identified its operating segment based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the Company's
executive directors for their decisions about resources
allocation and review of performance.

The Group has two reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers different
products and services and requires different business
strategies. The following summary describes the
operations in each of the Group's reportable segments:

o The operation of clubbing, entertainment and
catering business

° Securities investment
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D)

(a)

Segment information about reportable segments

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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6. IOHEHR(H)
(a) FERT2HD B HER

Operation
of clubbing,
entertainment and Securities
catering business Investment Total
BEGH KUY
ENER BERE @3
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FEr FEr FEr
For the year ended 31 May 2018 HZ2018F5A31HLFE
Reportable segment revenue pEEGEe 85,343 - 85,343
Reportable segment loss DEE GRS (19,279) (221) 19,500)
Finance income RERA - 505 505
Other income HiplA - 131 131
Income tax expense FERAY (1,828) - (1,828)
Finance cost BERK - (204) (204)
Deprecation il (4,672) - (4,672)
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair AT EFABENSR
value through profit or loss EEATERR - (446) (446)
Reversal of provision of reinstatement  BEIEER A& &
cost 200 - 200
Written off of property, plant and HisEmE - BE R
equipment 912) - (912)
Provision for impairment of trade and €5 R EttEUFER(E
other receivables B (45) - (45)
Additions of non-current assets REFMBEE 5,020 - 5,020
As at 31 May 2018 R2018%5H31H
Reportable segment assets 2R HEE 29,942 38,399 68,341
Reportable segment liabilities Z2RAHaRE (14,390) (20,691) (35,081)
For the year ended 31 May 2017 HZ2201755A31ALEE
Reportable segment revenue DES:GEien 96,164 - 96,164
Reportable segment loss 2anHEE 8,780) - 8,780)
Other income Hipl A 72 = 72
Depreciation ik (4,253) - (4,253)
Income tax expense FEHREY (847) - (847)
Additions to non-current assets NEFTDEE 753 - 753
As at 31 May 2017 1201765 A31A
Reportable segment assets E2RNHEE 25,396 - 25,396
Reportable segment liabilities E2RAHaRE (13,043) - (13,043)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D) 6. DEBER (&)
(b)  Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or (b) TWEHS/PNEZ EERAEE
loss, assets and liabilities HER
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before income tax expense PBRATESFIBEI X AIE B
Reportable segment loss Al 2w EE (19,500) (8,780)
Other income E A 46 1
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBREERY (4,410) (151)
Finance costs & RN (81) =
Consolidated loss before income REFELCEEBD
tax expense from continuing BRETISHI A ATAR &
operation 518 (23,945) (8,930)
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31 May 2018 201855H31H

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D) 6. PEER (E)
(b)  Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or (b) TWEHRS/PNEZ BEEREE
loss, assets and liabilities (CONT'D) HER (&)
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AIZ2WMHHBEE 68,341 25,396
Deferred tax assets BRI IEE E - 1,818
Tax recoverable CIdEE I 678 =
Unallocated corporate assets ROBLEEE 18,388 58,170
Consolidated total assets REBAE 87,407 85,384
Liabilities =E
Reportable segment liabilities AZ2WmaEaE (35,081) (13,043)
Current tax liabilities BNEARE IR & (E - (1,620)
Unallocated corporate liabilities RAOMEEAE (10,752) (3,374)
Consolidated total liabilities REBAaE (45,833) (18,037)
Management determines the Group is domiciled in EEEREAEEMNMEMARS IR
Hong Kong, which is the location where the Group BNASBEMNEZLE I - REBRHR
principally operates. All revenue of the Group for HHARM A WS KBRS - mHEFT
the reporting period was derived in Hong Kong. All BERBEENINES

its non-current assets are located in Hong Kong.

In addition, the customers of the Group, based on BEAN - IR R R Sl D - NE B
the locations at which the services were provided, WATBRPHNRES - HEREE—F
are all located in Hong Kong. No revenue from FETRZHW LA EBRKEE10%
transactions with a single customer amounts to A ko

10% or more of the Group’'s revenue.
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7 REVENUE

The Group's principal activities are the operation of clubs,

entertainment and restaurants.

Revenue represents the amount received or receivable
from the sales of food and beverages, entrance fees,
sponsorship income, entertainment income and others
(including tips, cloakroom fees, photobooth and event

rental income).

Revenue from the Group’s principal activities during the

reporting period is as follows:

Wz
ARENEIBRXRGREEGH RER

Yo a5 45 38 B R an N Bk am B W sk iE MR
HASE BBHBRA  RERARE
fit (BB KEMER - REKA
FoEEHEESIA) -

REBRBEHRNNEZEB IR
T

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Revenue from: LATRTE B AUk as
Clubs and entertainment operation SR L E
Sales of beverage i/ GnEi=h= 70,107 83,553
Less: Sales discounts B SHEYT (13,487) (13,305)
56,620 70,248
Entrance fee ASE 4,002 3,463
Entertainment income IREEUT A 1,259 =
Sponsorship income EBhA 2,887 3,311
Others Efh 1,939 1,455
66,707 78,477
Restaurants operation BEEE
Sales of food and beverage R kR mEE 18,903 17615
Less: Sales discounts B BT (281) (36)
18,622 17579
Others EAth 14 108
e ..._._...__.._ 18636 17,687
Total revenue FElh g 85,343 96,164
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31 May 2018 201855H31H

FINANCE INCOME 8. BE YW A
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FEITL
Interest received from financial assets B UWIE A FE AEBZEHD
at fair value through profit or loss TREETS 505 =
OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 9. Haug A R W
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Reversal of provision of reinstatement & E{&1E Ak A4
cost 200 -
Interest income A BHA 177
Management fee income EEEBEWA = 72
377 73
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10. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. BRFFSHBAXAIEE
Loss before income tax expense is arrived at after BrETS TR T AT A 1R Ty A& KR A T I8 B
charging: IS
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Cost of inventories recognised as ER AR NFEEK A
expense
— Clubs and entertainment operation — ST RIREEEE 12,914 14,571
- Restaurants operation —EREEE 4,696 4,546
17,610 19,117
Auditors’ remuneration IZE BN < 771 608
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% - B R EITE
equipment 4,672 4,253
Written off of property, plant and WEHYZE - BB K
equipment 912 -
Provision of impairment of trade and 8 5 N H M EIR
other receivables B 45 -
Listing expenses X - 15,532
Fair value change on financial assets at #Z A FEFT ABZHEE
fair value through profit or loss BENTEZY 446 -
Staff costs (including directors’ BINA (BEESHH)
remuneration) (Note 11) (Kiat11)
—Wages, salaries and other benefits —I& FHekEMEFR 26,366 17,547
— Contribution to defined contribution — REHFERIRET B
pension plans 878 764
27,244 18,311
Minimum lease payments under LEHEE THEHRE
operating leases (B 21,184 20,718
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ® KW

31 May 2018 201855H31H

11. EESFMRAEZREEFEMAL

Directors’ remuneration (a) E=H
The remunerations of the directors of the RARESHMEHFIOT
Company are set out below:
Contribution
to defined
Salaries and  contribution
Fees other benefits pension plans Total
ek REMTER
He Hit @A SHEIR k]
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FET FET FAT FET
Year ended 31 May 2018 HZ2018F5A31HLFE
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester (“Kester R854 ([R4B48])

Ng") (Note (i) () 624 3,800 18 4,442
Ms. Lau Sze Yuen Renee (Note (i)~ BIB|& L (472 555 15 18 688
Non-executive director FHTEE
Mr. Kan Sze Man (Note (i) BEREE (Hiti) 120 = = 120
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE

directors
Mr. Wong Sui Chi (Note (i) BRBAE (WA0i) 120 - = 120
Mr. Li Lap Sun (Note (i) FUHEE (M) 120 - - 120
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy (Note (i) HEERSE (#fi (i) 120 - - 120

1,659 3,915 36 5,610
Year ended 31 May 2017 BE201755A31BLEERE
Executive directors HirEZE
Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester ("Kester REBEEE ([REHA])

Ng") (Note (i) (Bi)) 200 96 3 299
Ms. Lau Sze Yuen Renee (Note (i)~ 2IBf&L (Hizi) = 499 17 516
Non-executive director FHITEE
Mr. Kan Sze Man (Note (i) BIREE (Hiti) 40 - = 40
Independent non-executive directors B HHTEE
Mr. Wong Sui Chi (Note i) Bl (M i) 20 - = 20
Mr. Li Lap Sun (Note (i) BUMEE (Hii) 20 - = 20
Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy (Note fi)) — REEFRE (Hat(ii)) 20 - - 20

300 595 20 915
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONT'D)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (CONT'D)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Kester Ng was appointed executive director
of the Company upon incorporation.

(ii) On 1 June 2016 and 22 August 2016, Ms. Lau
Sze Yuen Renee and Mr. Kan Sze Man were
appointed executive director and non-executive
director of the Company respectively. During the
year ended 31 May 2016, no remuneration was
paid or payable to Ms. Lau Sze Yuen Renee and
Mr. Kan Sze Man.

(iii) On 14 March 2017 Mr. Wong Sui Chi, Mr. Li
Lap Sun and Mr. Ng Kwok Kei Sammy were
appointed independent non-executive directors of
the Company.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group
during the years ended 31 May 2018 and 2017 did
not include any director of the Company.

The emoluments paid to the remaining individuals
during the year ended 31 May 2018 are set out

11. EESFMEREZESHFM AL

(&)
(a)

(b)

EEHM (4)
st

(i) RABE St AR AR SZ B 1
RERERRRTES-

(ii) R20164F6 A1 8 &201648
A228 32 mrz Lt kit
REEDFIBZERA AR
WITEFRIERTES - &
Z2016F5A31BIEFE -
B B A sk 2 B s £
R+ R EFEAEH -

(iii) R2017F3H148 » Einkk
Sk EUHEERARE
EEDRBREREALNRE
SIEITES -

EEBREHMAL
NEEEZE20185F K£2017658
SIHEFEMNREEESFHMA
TABEEMARAGES-

HZE2018F5A31BIEFE ' A
SBTNATZMOBEEH T

below:

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEITL
Salaries and allowances e KoL 3,786 2,617

Contribution to defined contribution FE TR RTEIH K
pension plans 90 87
3,876 2,704
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11.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONT'D)

(b)

(c)

Five highest paid individuals (CONT'D)

The remuneration fell within the following band:

Nil to HK$1,000,000

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ® KW

11.

Z£%1,000,000/# 7T

31 May 2018 201855H31H

EEVFMERAEEESHFMAL

(&)
(b) HERSHFMAL (E)
BRAATFMNFATEHE:

2018 2017
20184 20174
5 5

During the years ended 31 May 2018 and 2017,
no directors or any of the highest paid individuals
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors or any of the highest paid individuals
of the Group as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

The emoluments paid or payable to members
of senior management during the years
ended 31 May 2018 and 2017 were within the
following band:

Nil to HK$1,000,000

Z£%1,000,000/#7T

HE2018F K2017F5A31 B ILFE
B UZEED T MA T ERE
S EENEEANE - NREEHRER AR
SEESIEMNZSESHTMA LI
B - fEARSIE FMA S B 5N
ARE B A SEE) kBB v (E o

(c) B Z2018F % 20175 H31H
LtFE ENSENSREERE

RENMESN FUTEE :
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

3 3
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12. OTHER EXPENSES 12. HMBEX

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Professional fee EXER 3,701 515
Security expenses REZAX 3,115 3,308
Cleaning expenses BERE 2,094 1,910
Promotional expenses EERAXS 1,902 543
Repair & maintenance B RIRE 1,638 1,130
Bank charges RITEMA 1,417 1,368

Written off of property, plant and MEEIE - BB kR
equipment 912 -

Provision of impairment on trade and 2 5 I E A e YRR
other receivables B 45 =
Auditor’'s remuneration 1% A 7 A 771 608
Others Hh 5,044 3,682
20,639 13,064
13. FINANCE COST 13. ®ERA

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Interest on bank borrowings RITE RS 285 =
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group is subject to income tax on profits arising in
or derived from Hong Kong, being its principal place of
business. The income tax expense in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income represents:

14.

31 May 2018 201855H31H

FRrEBRX
AEBARNEIREXMHBEES
KRB BRBRABEAREHR - RE2
R R A PSR S oE -

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Current income tax — Hong Kong BUVEARR1S T — BB FF T
Profits Tax 10 1,225
Deferred tax (Note 19) RERIE (ATa£19) 1,818 (378)
Income tax expense FIS B2 1,828 847

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Group is not subject to any taxation under
the jurisdictions of the Cayman Islands. Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits.

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to
loss before income tax expense at the statutory tax rate
to the income tax expense at the effective tax rate is as

BEFAERESMNEREKAN  RNEE
BEANRFASHS AR R SNEMR
B o BEFEH Gt EEBUE IR
16.5% T KET & o

BOREB R EEARR A SR A
R PTG TR S R B R B R 5T E
PRSTRRS ERRANT -

follows:

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before income tax expense BrET 1SR B S AT ES 18 (23,945) (8,930)
Tax at the statutory rate of 16.5% (2017: & /AEH %£16.5%
16.5%) (20174 : 16.5% )
STEATIA (3,951) (1,473)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses  NA] 155 X O TR 75 52 22 1,501 2,586
Tax effect of temporary differences not K &2 E B M 2= 5 1 7 15
recognised T 1,614 (311)
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for BRRMW TR S &
tax purpose 105 -
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised AERHBEEORIETE 2,558 -
Others Eih 1 45
Income tax expense FS RS2 1,828 847
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15. DIVIDEND 15.

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during the year ended 31
May 2018, nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of the reporting period (2017: nil).

16. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS 16.
OF THE COMPANY

Loss attributable to owners of the RAEHA AEIEEE
Company (HK$'000) (F%7T)

Weighted average number of ordinary  FALAGtE SR EREIER
shares for the purpose of calculating A% I 5
basic loss per share (in thousands) (Fh%)

The number of ordinary shares for the purpose of
calculating basic loss per share has been determined
on the assumption that the reorganisation and the
capitalisation issue as described in Note 28 has been
effective on 1 June 2015.

The Company did not have any potential dilutive shares
for the years ended 31 May 2018 and 2017 Accordingly,
the diluted loss per share are the same as the basic loss
per share for the years ended 31 May 2018 and 2017
respectively.

wzo\ BCI Group Holdings Limited mFI&EBR QA
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AABREZ201845 8318 IEFE#
48 ) B X 38 A% A BROIR 1 Bk 72 Ak 15 IR
B 1 B R B 2R LA SR IR A 2 2R A<HE
IR (20174 : f&) o

KAREEANELEERERS
2018 2017
20184 20174
(25,135) (9,513)
800,000 630,137

UG ESRAREEN S BREE T
RERMIFE28 ATl M B4 & & AL 31T
2 R2015F6 A1B AR MEE °

HZE20185F 2017565831 B ILFE
ARG ETMABEFENORMD -
EL - 9 RIE = 20184 & 201745 A31
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31 May 2018 201855H31H

17.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. YE -BERSZE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvement equipment Total
HEWE RE-EER
#1& BiE] et
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET FET
Cost: R :
At 1 June 2016 R20165671H 13,728 7179 20,907
Additions NE 950 557 1,507
At 31 May 2017 and 1 R2017F6A318 &

June 2017 20176 A1H 14,678 7736 22,414
Additions NE 3,898 1,300 5,198
Written-off 3 (3,125) (229) (3,354)
AUST May 2018 S M2018%°6A31H 18451 8807 2258
Accumulated RIIE

depreciation:

At 1 June 2016 ®201656H1H 7164 3,592 10,756
Charge for the year FRZ M 2,840 1,413 4,253
At 31 May 2017 and 1 R201765 H31H &

June 2017 20176 A1H 10,004 5,005 15,009
Charge for the year FRX M 3,138 1,534 4,672
Written-off 58 (2,308) (134) (2,442)
At31 May 2018 ] N20186A31H 10834 6406 17,239
Carrying amount: BRMEIE :

At 31 May 2018 1201845 431H 4,617 2,402 7,019
At 31 May 2017 R20174F5 A31H 4,674 2,731 7,405

Leasehold improvement as at 31 May 2018 included
reinstatement provision with carrying amount of

MR2018E5A31ENHEEMEEER
HBREH /5568,000/8 7T (20174 :

HK$568,000 (2017: HK$175,000). 175,000/ 7T ) KIS 1E B -
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. EZRHEMERFIE
2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k23 FET FBT
Trade receivables B 5 EIGIR (a) 3,385 2,995
Other receivables Hofh e U RIR (b) 5,195 547
Prepayments NG 4,506 2,188
Deposits Be 7914 6,852
Total BET 21,000 12,582
Less: Prepayments for B B RE &
acquisition of property, plant TR A
and equipment (1,810) -
Other receivables (non-current  HhEUzkmE (3E
portion) BNERER S ) (3,252) (4,902)
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E A R GRIR 15,938 7,680
Notes: BftaE :
(a) Trade receivables (a) =) e

Majority of the Group's revenue is attributable to sales
of food and beverages via cash and credit card. There
was no credit term granted to the customers.

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables
at the end of the reporting period, net of impairment,
based on invoice date is as follows:

FEBABAWEIRENR S R
EARIMNREEAREE - K
SEYWEATPRHEES-

REERREHRNHE S EKRIE
(HBRRE) R EZE A BHREREKR S
e :

2018 2017
20184 20174

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FEIT

0-30 days 0Z£30H 659 909
31-60 days 31£60H 52 625
61-90 days 61%290H 73 717
91-180 days 91%180H 1,363 744
181-365 days 181%365H 1,238 =
3,385 2,995

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
receivables for evidence of impairment on both an
individual and collective basis. Impairment losses in
respect of trade receivables are recorded using an
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables
directly.
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(a)
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31 May 2018 201855H31H

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT'D) 18. EB S RHMEWRIE (&)
Trade receivables (CONT'D) (a) B S REWEIE (%)
The ageing of trade receivables at the end of the RFERAREBHAERFRENE S
reporting period, net of impairment, which are past due FEWGRIE (HIBRAE) RIBRE AT :
but not impaired is as follows:
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Neither past due nor impaired R H TR ARE - -
Past due but not impaired B8 B R E
1-30 days past due #HA1Z=30H 659 909
31-90 days past due BHA31E90H 125 1,342
91-180 days past due #HI912=180H 1,363 744
181-365 days past due #HI181=365H 1,238 -
3,385 2,995
Receivables that were past due but not impaired related 2 8 B R RE R FE R IR % 2
to a number of customers that have a good track record RAEEHEAR T ESRDHNEE
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors ERE - BIEBALR  ANFESEDR
of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for B AR EREEZVESAEH m
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as S A AR AR AR BBk E - R
there has not been a significant change in credit quality BAMZE LTI RMERE - &
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. £ B 48 Bh 2 S A AR A (R (] HE R
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit MR K ERER E M S B 1 08 48 ff o
enhancements over these balances.
Other receivables (b) E fth & W 5K IE

(b)

Included in the amount, balance of approximately
HK$3,896,000 was loans receivable which was secured
by the assets of the borrower, interest-free within the
first three years from the drawn down date and had no
fixed terms of repayment.

T AR RIB T & #5493,896,000/8
TR E A ERA B EFE
# BRERNEMESE =528 "8
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19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

19.

EEHREE

Decelerated tax

depreciation Tax losses Total
R IE
e THIEEE #et
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET FET
At 1 June 2016 M20165F6 H1H 369 1,071 1,440
Credited/(charge) to FFAEBR (BiEES
profit or loss (Note k&) (KiaE14)
14) 1,174 (796) 378
At 31 May 2017 and R2017F5H8318 &
1 June 2017 20176 A 1H 1,543 275 1,818
Charge to profit or loss Bz %
(Note 14) (KizF14) (1,543) (275) (1,818)
At 31 May 2018 720185 H31H - - -

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes relate to income tax levied by same
taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
certain unused tax losses due to the unpredicted ability
of future profit streams. No deferred tax assets has
been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.
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31 May 2018 201855H31H

GOODWILL e
HK$'000
FET

At 1 June 2016, 31 May 2017, 7R2016F6H1H 20174F5H318 »
1 June 2017 and 31 May 2018 20176 H1H X&2018%5H31H 2,209

On 1 November 2015, the Group acquired 100% of
the equity interests of Legend Vision Limited and its
subsidiary (hereinafter collectively referred as “Legend
Vision Group”). The principal activity of Legend Vision
Group is the operation of clubbing business in Hong
Kong. The acquisition was made with the objective to
achieve economies of scale and strategically expand the
clubbing business of the Group. The acquisition resulted
in the goodwill and it is solely allocated to the cash
generating unit ('CGU’) namely the Legend Vision Group.

The recoverable amount of the goodwill has been
determined from value in use calculation based on cash
flow projections from formally approved budgets covering
a five-year period. Cash flows beyond five-year period are
extrapolated using a growth rate of 3% (2017: 2%).

Discount rate BhIE =&
Operating margin * 4 R R R+
Growth rate within the five-year period A FHE KR
* defined as profit before income tax expense divided by

revenue

The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific
risks relating to the relevant CGU. The operating margin
and growth rate within five-year period have been based
on management expectation and the result of the market
research and prediction.

The directors of the Company have considered the impact
of the possible changes in the key assumptions (discount
rate, operating margin and growth rate) used, and
conducted sensitivity analysis on the CGU's carrying value
for impairment testing during the reporting period. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, any reasonably
possible changes in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount is based would not cause the CGU's
carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

R2015%F11 818 - NEEUEEFTIERK
AEAFTNMEMEBAR (LATER 5
IERK SR B | ) 2 EBARHE - #TIER SR E = &
REBEECER - WHEEEETRIR
BEELARBE B A EENE AT
X% - WBEERE HESREERS
EEBM ([REEEENM] - BIFTIERK
£E) -

FENATKRESBERERAFHMENE
IEEEMNR S RE=TERTENERE
BET -BARAFHENE S RERE
FR3% (20174 : 2% ) HEH o

2018 2017
20184 20174
15.3% 18.1%

0.0%-7.4%
5.0%-14.0%

0.0%-12.7%
0.0%-2.0%

* FUTE A3 R P15 B B Sz B ) BR JA
Yozs

PR R ATATREIR R - AR AR
ReELBENEENBEERR - &L/
EEREAFHEE R R E IR E RN
KISt oE MIRB A REE ©

ARREECDEEBMABEIERR (MR
R EENEERRIERER) AR EBH
FE INBERAHRSELEMER
HEETHEREDNIARFRE - A2
AEERA MO SBEMKREIER
ROERESEAREEH T EETRTE
EEMMREERLEATKE S -
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21. INVENTORIES 21. FE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Beverage /N 775 522

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22. RAFEFABRZMNETRMEE
PROFIT OR LOSS

2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Debt securities held for trading BIEE BRERES
- Listed debt securities — EE%ES 19,990 =

The above debt investments at 31 May 2018 were LEBIKEN2018F5A31BDERIFIER
classified as held for trading and were, upon initial & @ YRAVIFHEIRKAEE LT R/EATE
recognition, designated by the Group as financial assets &t AIE@RHISRELEE o

at fair value through profit or loss.

As at 31 May 2018, all of these, financial assets at fair 120186 HA318 ' FAAUFRAFEF AR
value through profit or loss were pledged to secure the =AERMEED FEM NERAEEEHR
Group's short term bank borrowing (Note 27). TTHER (HE27) »
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31 May 2018 201855H31H

AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED PARTY

23. [EUREARE TS FIR

Maximum outstanding
balance during the year

ended 31 May As at 31 May
HESANALEE
BEE R MH5H31H
Notes 2018 2017 2018 2017
k23 20185 20174 20185 20175
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FEr
Model Genesis TEAF TR R
International B PR B 18
Management Limited BRAA]
("Model Genesis") (M55 ), () &
Rih]) (iii) 388 275 82 176
Notes: HiaE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The amount due was non-trade in nature, unsecured,
interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

CSI| Properties Limited, being one of the ultimate
shareholders of the Company, held beneficial interests in
the related company.

CSI Properties Limited has disposed its interest in the
Company on 31 March 2018. Transactions with the
Company are classified as related party transactions up
to 31 March 2018.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

FZRARIEBEZME  EIER 2R
T B E R

ARARBRBBRRZ — ERRREHE
ERARNEBARFEESRE

2$ o
m

BRI ER R AFIE R20184
SA3THHEERARTMER - &
2018493 A318 » EARRQFHEITH
x%m&"*ﬁﬁﬁaﬂﬁpﬁx%
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

24. BERASEEY

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FETL

Cash and cash balances B MRS LR 17,383 60,672
Time deposits TEHATF R 16,125 =
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEYD 33,508 60,672

Cash and cash equivalents represented cash at banks
and in hand. Cash at banks earns interest at floating
rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term
time deposits are made for varying periods of between
one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with credit

B8R o

worthy banks with no recent history of default.

Bank balances, included in cash and cash equivalents of the
Group, are denominated in the following foreign currencies.

ReMReFEMERRTLTHERAS -
RITESREHRITERNRFEEZ
BHERBAE - EHEHERE—H
EZEAHRAE  RFAEEAE
RE®RME @ LIKE QAT T
M R ERENA) 8 SRITAE A N B IR
KRG E R iF BT HAN B8 X008k

RITER (EFAXKEREMREF
BY) WA TINEHE -

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$°000 HK$'000

F#ET FEIL

- EUR — BT 1 1
- USD =5t 26,162 1
26,163 2
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26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ® KW

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS 25.

Restricted bank deposits represented cash at bank held
by a subsidiary secured for bank borrowing (Note 27).

31 May 2018 201855H31H

ZRHEBITER
R BIRIT RIS B R BERRT
ERNBERAFAENRITRES (HFE

27) e

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. EFREMESRIE
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Trade payables B SR 3,254 2,885
Accruals and other payables FERT B A R E AT IR 8,680 10,954
Receipts in advance TEU R IE 3,232 2,578
Total st 15,166 16,417
Less: Current portion W BB (13,989) (15,127)
Non-current portion FERNEAES 7> 1,177 1,290

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables at the
end of the reporting period based on invoice date is as
follows:

AEERBEPRRNE ZENFIRER
HZAHRRESTOT

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$°'000 HK$'000

FET FET

0-30 days 0%30H 1,639 1,604
31-60 days 31260H 1,499 1,281
Over 60 days HBiE60H 116 =
3,254 2,885

Accruals and other payables included provision of
reinstatement and deferred rental expense.

FEETER KA ENFIRBREERRE
FBEER 2R -
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27.

BANK BORROWINGS

Current B A
Bank loan due for repayment within

AR —FREEMNRIT
one vear (Note(a), (b) & (c)) B3 (Kfat(a) - (b) K (c))

RITHER
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
30,667 =

(a) The bank borrowing of HK$18,520,000 was secured by
debt securities measured at fair value through profit
or loss placed by the Company and a subsidiary in
the bank. Interest is charged at Hong Kong Inter-bank
Offered Rate (“"HIBOR") + 2.5% per annum.

(b) The bank borrowing of HK$10,000,000, bore interest
at the rate of HIBOR +2.25% per annum for the year
ended 31 May 2018.

(c) As at 31 May 2018, the restricted bank deposits of
HK$2,146,000 was security of bank borrowing, placed by
a subsidiary in the bank.

The above banking facilities of the loans are subject
to the fulfilment of covenants relating to minimum
requirement of pledged debt securities and restricted
bank deposits and compliance of the bank’s
administrative requirements, as are commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions in Hong
Kong. If the Company and a subsidiary were to breach
the covenants, the drawn down facility would become
repayable on demand.

At 31 May 2018, the bank borrowings were scheduled to
repay within one year or on demand.

The Group regularly monitors the compliance with these
covenants and the scheduled repayments of the loans
and does not consider it probable that the bank will
exercise its discretion to demand repayment for so long
as the subsidiary continues to meet these requirements.
Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in Note 38(c). As at 31 May 2018, none
of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had
been breached.
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(a) $R1T1E5%18,520,0007 7T J5 LAZR 2
A KB A R ERRIEITIRAFE
FTABENESEZHEER 78
NEBRITRZERE ([FBRITHE
2IRE]) MEL25EE -

(b) HZE2018F5A31H ILFE @ BT
3£10,000,0008 LI BB RITR
WEINER2.25E5 5 -

(c) M2018F5H31 8 » ZRHIRITIER
2,146,000/ 7T T3 LAY B 22 )17 B
RITHISRT T B FRIEHIE -

R ERHRITREAGAHACERE
e sm R ZRFIRITERNREEK R
BT ERITITER E R ERRTT A
FE RZELETRANERTESREE
I AEEREE - fWAR A LM B AR
BRI AT R ERARERE

ymm
= ©

R20184F5 A318 @ EITERBER —
FRRIRERER-

AEETHERLETZELH RIZH
BEEZNBN TREREWEBA A
BEBTZERT BITTIARAIERTT
FEWNEEERER - BERNSERE
ESRBREBNE —PHBIHNME
38(c) ° 72018F5HA31H » NEE B E
ERBHECIRNEERHLE -
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31 May 2018 201855H31H

SHARE CAPITAL 28. MR

ARAFIN2016FE6 A1BHE201845H
31 HHMAEATE KB BITRAZ S 10

The following changes in the Company’s authorised and
issued share capital took place during the period from 1

June 2016 to 31 May 2018. TSe
Number of
shares HK$'000
BR17E FAET
Authorised, ordinary shares of FREE0.01B THEE
HK$0.01 each: EER
At 1 June 2016, 31 May 2017, 1 June M20165F6 H18 -
2017 and 31 May 2018 201758318 -
20176 818 &
201845 A31H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid, ordinary SREE0.01ETH
shares of HK$0.01 each: ERTRBZEER:
At 1 June 2016 M2016%6A1H 1 —*
Shares issued pursuant to the RIEEARZETID
reorganisation (Note (i) (H1aEd)) 9,999 —*
Capitalisation issue credited as fully RAR B RERAK
paid on the share premium account VER R E AL BT
of the Company (Note (ii)) (HiaEdi)) 599,990,000 6,000
Shares issued pursuant to the share RIERMHBEEZITRG
offer (Note (iii) (Bt &t (iii) ) 200,000,000 2,000
At 31 May 2017, 1 June 2017 and 31 M201765H318 -
May 2018 20176 A1 X
2018%5H31H 800,000,000 8,000

* The balance represents an amount less than HK$1,000

AAEERAREDT,000/8 7T

2018 Annual Report 43§ /131

7/



N

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e YRR W

31 May 2018 201855 431H

28.

SHARE CAPITAL (CONT'D)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

In July 2016, pursuant to the reorganisation in
preparation for the listing of shares of the Company
on GEM of the Stock Exchange and for the purpose
of rationalising the Group's structure, 6,191, 2,653,
133, 172, 600 and 250 ordinary shares were issued to
Aplus Concept Limited, Phoenix Year Limited, Ethers
Entertainment Limited, Jet Top Investment Limited,
Jubilee Success Investments Limited and Perfect King
Investments Limited respectively.

On 7 April 2017, the Company capitalised an amount of
HK$6,000,000 standing to the credit of share premium
account of the Company and the said sum was applied
in paying up full the 599,990,000 shares issued to the
shareholders immediately prior to the listing according to
their respective shareholding.

On 7 April 2017, the Company listed its shares on GEM
operated by the Stock Exchange with public offer shares
of 200,000,000 at an issue price of HK$0.34 per share.
The transaction costs attributable to issue of shares
amounted to HK$8,575,000.
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28.

MR (48)

Hist

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

R20165F7H  BREBER/EHEARAA
& 17 75 B 22 P Bl 2R £ R B
REBEREMETHEA A5H
2 BlE Aplus Concept Limited
Phoenix Year Limited - Ethers
Entertainment Limited - £/£3%
BEHMR LA Jubilee Success
Investments Limited X EEHEHR
PR A AE]E176,1910% » 2,6530% * 133
%~ 1720%  600A% K& 2504% & A% o

R2017F4A78 » RRAFHEARA
B934 (B BE6,000,000/8 TTHY #E BR 48
BrEAR MEReEERAEHRR
RERE EWATRIRRES 8 R
2M1FEFH1TH599,990,000% %

1/\ ®

R2017F4878  ARBEKMH
EHXMEENAZER LW
BETEBROIMBTAHEES
200,000,0000& &7 © A% {7 31T HEAS
RS 58,575,000 7T
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31 May 2018 201855H31H

RESERVES 29. f&iE
Details of the movements on the Group's reserves are AEBNRESBFBANGEERE
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in gk o
equity.
Movements on the Company's reserves are as follows: RAGIWREEEENT
Share Capital  Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
R aE BARE 2 FR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET TET FAT
At 1 June 2017 120176718 56,525 34 (15,153) 41,406
Loss and total comprehensive FRERREERALE
income for the year - - (2,927) (2,927)
At31 May 2018 R2018%5 4318 56,525 3 (18,080) 38,479
At 1 June 2016 12016E6A 15 = = = =
Arising on reorganisation BEREE - 34 = 34
Shares issued pursuant to the reorganisation 1R IEEAZ(TIRE
(Note 28()) (HiE28()) 5,100 - - 5,100
Capitalisation issue of shares (Note 28} RIDVERMEEST (Hi2280) (6,000) = = 6,000)
Shares issued pursuant to the share offer RERDEERTRR
(Note 28(ii) (Hii#28lii) 66,000 - - 66,000
Transaction costs attributable to the Share ROBERERSKA
Offer (Note 28}ii)) (Hii#28lii) (8,575) - - (8,575)
Loss and total comprehensive income for the ~ ENERREERALE
year - - (15,153) (15,153)
At 31 May 2017 12017%5A8318 56,525 34 (15,153) 41,406

(a) Share premium

Share premium represented the amount subscribed

for share capital in excess of nominal value.

(b) Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the difference between
the fair value of consideration paid and the

carrying value of the subsidiaries acquired.

(c) Retained earnings/accumulated losses

Retained earnings/accumulated losses represented
the cumulative net gains and losses recognised in

profit or loss.

(a) KREEE
Bin s B iR BR A i
E{EH S °

(b) BAfEE
BAFEEEENREAFER
P U R B B8 1 B RR 1B 2 A Y
ZHe

(c) HREBRF RFIEBE

RBENBABEENES
PR Rt ik M IR -
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30. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 30.

On 31 August 2016, 2 shares, representing 40% equity
interests of City Silver Limited (“City Silver”), were
issued to an independent third party at a consideration of
HK$625,000, which was settled by offsetting the same
amount due to the independent third party.

31. COMMITMENTS 31.
(a) Operating commitments

The Group leased its office premise, clubs,
restaurants and machineries for entertainment
studio under operating lease arrangements with
third party landlords. Leases for these properties
are negotiated for terms ranging from one to three

IR RS

MR2016F8A31H  REBRBIE
= ET2R KRG, (FBERCity Silver
Limited ([ City Silver|) 40%f%#) -
KRB A625,00078 7T © T B 5 FE
SAVAE eyl o R N

HRIE
(a)

& RIE

AEBEREZERELHER
ZHETHERAE @ﬁﬁ
BE RIREE R LRSS - H YD
W%ﬁmﬂﬁﬂu? E=EE

C e ﬁ“&

years:

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Not later than one year DB —F 24,955 19,707
Later than one year but not later —FEETBBRF

than five years 8,286 14,292

33,241 33,999

In addition, the operating leases for two
restaurants and machineries of the Group are
based on the restaurants’ respective revenue and
net profit pursuant to the terms and conditions
as set out in the respective agreements. As
future revenue and net profit of restaurants
and entertainment studio could not be reliably
determined, the relevant contingent payments
have not been included in above table and only the
minimum lease commitments have been included.
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31. COMMITMENTS (CONT'D) 31, AE(E)
(b) CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (b) BEAREISE
At the reporting date, the Group had the following RIS B Ef - ANEBRE A RIE
capital commitments: ONNE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FETL
Commitments for the acquisition BHEBENTHEERN
of: HRHE
Property, plant and equipment RS 2,357 115
32. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 32. #EZRATMBEARRR
POSITION
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FEITL
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—REHBERaNRE 34 34
__Otherreceivables AfRMGR .29 -
303 34
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b & IR 4,831 947
Amounts due from subsidiaries I = NEIE S 40,182 1,469
Cash and cash equivalents B RREEEYD 11,932 57,084
___________________________________________________________________________________ 6945 59500
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables H e 50R 695 3,333
Bank borrowing IRITIER 10,000 =
Amounts due to subsidiaries AL ENEI RS - 6,721
Current tax liabilities BNEAfR I & (& 74 74
10,769 10,128
Netcurrentassets = "EBEER&® 46176 49,372
Net assets BEE 46,479 49,406
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32. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 32. ZRATBMBARRE (&)
POSITION (CONT'D)

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
MtaE FET FEITL
Equity s

Share capital &N 28 8,000 8,000
Reserves R 29 38,479 41,406
Total equity Py 46,479 49,406

On behalf of the board of directors REREZ=S

Mr. Ng Shing Joe Kester Ms. Lau Sze Yuen
REBAXE 2B mat
Director Director
E2 EFE
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PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. KIBAEFE
The following are the details of the Group's subsidiaries AEBKIE A RIN201845 431 HAFF
at 31 May 2018: ST

Issued and
paid up Attributable equity Principal activities and

Country and date of
incorporation/establishment and

Name form of business structure share capital interest place of operations
SMAL RIBERK ERTRAR
A8 HEEBEBTR R FE{k B TEEBREE
Direct Indirect
E# EiE:

BCI Group Holdings (BVI)  The British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), US$10 100% - Investment holding, Hong
Limited 6 February 2013, limited liability Kong

company
RBRAHE ([RBRRESE]) 103 7T REABK &
2013%2A68 - ERA7

BCI Group Enterprises Hong Kong, 28 November 2012, HK$1 - 100% Investment holding, Hong
Limited limited liability company Kong

Hi& - 2012411 H288 - R AR BT REER BB

Group Best Investment ~ The BVI, 26 April 2013, limited US$10,000 - 100% Investment holding, Hong

Holdings Limited liability company Kong
RERIES 2013547268 10,000%7T RERR BE
BRAA

Legend Vision Limited Hong Kong, 8 April 2015, limited HK$1 - 100% Investment holding, Hong

liability company Kong

HIRKBR LR % 2015F4A8H  BRAR BT RERKR &%

Bannock Holdings Limited The BVI, 4 February 2014, limited US$1 - 100% Security investment, Hong

liability company Kong
RBRAHE  201452R48 E ERRE BB
BRAT]

Buzz Concepts Hong Kong, 17 February 2014, HK$1 - 100% Provision of public relations
Management (H.K.) limited liability company services, Hong Kong
Limited

B8 2014528178 BRAR 1% REENHERY  BA
Lively World Limited The BVI, 2 January 2015, limited US$1 — 100% Investment holding, Hong
liability company Kong
RBRAHE 2015128 1% RERK BE

BRAT
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33.

Name

=L

Group Best Investment
Limited

SEREBRAR

Grand Diamond Limited

EEARDE

Litton Global Limited

Joint Ace Limited

Crown Grand Limited

City Silver Limited

Ace Gain Limited

Maximus (HK) Limited

(formerly known as “Ease
Ocean Limited”)

Maximus (HK) Limited
(1% [Ease Ocean
Limited J)

Castle Team Limited

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

33.
Country and date of Issued and
incorporation/establishment and paid up

form of business structure share capital

SRR RIBRR ERTRAR

AHEEBEBTR LEN

Hong Kong, 9 July 2004, limited HK$100,000
liability company

B 200467R98 - BRA7A] 100,000/ 7T

Hong Kong, 13 February 2008, HK$2,030,750
limited liability company

A5 2008F2A138  ERAA 2,030,75078 7T

The BVI, 4 February 2014, limited US$1
liability company

RBRAHE 201452848 - (EV
ARAA

Hong Kong, 18 March 2015, limited HK$1
liability company

H% - 20153R188  BRAR BT

Hong Kong, 20 November 2014, HK$1
limited liability company

F% 20144611 A208 - BBAR 18T

Hong Kong, 12 October 2013, HK$625,003
limited liability company

B 20135104128 - BRAA 625,003/ T

Hong Kong, 5 May 2016, limited HK$1
liability company

&% 20165558  FRAA BT

Hong Kong, 7 July 2017, limited HK$100
liability company

BB 201757A78  BRAT 100/87T

Hong Kong, 25 January 2018, HK$1
limited liability company

B 201851250  ARAA 18T
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B A RIREAE ()

Attributable equity Principal activities and
interest

i RE

Direct

BE

Indirect

B3

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

60%

100%

100%

100%

place of operations

FIRRBRER DY

Operation of club, Hong
Kong
geemn &8

Operation of club, Hong
Kong
gEem &8

Trademark holding, Hong
Kong
BRER &8

Operation of restaurant,
Hong Kong

Operation of restaurant,
Hong Kong
KEBE B

Operation of restaurant,
Hong Kong
KEEE &

Operation of restaurant,
Hong Kong

Operation of entertainment
studio, Hong Kong

REREXT BR

Not yet commenced
business

GENGIEES S



34.
(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Related party transactions

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
material transactions with related parties during

the year:

Related party identity
B & 47

Digital Option Limited and
High Supreme Limited

Digital Option Limited
High Supreme Limited

Capital Delight Limited
BERAERAA

Model Genesis
TR 52 3T R b

Model Genesis

TR 5L R 3

Type of transactions
e}t

Rental expenses

ik alaba

Rental expenses

HEFX

Marketing and
promotion fee

mEEREIREEER

Management income

EIBUTA

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The transactions were conducted at terms and
conditions mutually agreed between the relevant
parties. The directors of the Company are of
the opinion that those related party transactions
were conducted in the normal ordinary course of
business of the Group.

CSI Properties Limited, being one of the ultimate
shareholders of the Company, held beneficial
interests in the related company.

CSI Properties Limited has disposed its interest
in the related companies on 31 March 2017.
Transactions with the related companies are
classified as related party transactions up to 31
March 2017.

Mr. Kester Ng, being an executive director of the
Company, held beneficial interests in the related
company.

e ® KW

31 May 2018 201855H31H

34. BEEAERS
(a) BEHBIRS
Biza WS mAREMESATH
FEE I - AN B A AF 1A B Bt
ETUTEARS
Notes 2018 2017
it 20185 20174
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
(i), (i) & (iii) - 1,273
(i) & (ii) - 19
(i), (i) & (iv) 2,354 2,372
(i) - 72
Hiat -

) RSHEEEEHETHE
B R R 7T © A A )
EERBREME RS
RAEE R BB
7o

i AARREBEZ —ARK
T NS TS
B AR -

BRREMEFRAAERN
201743 A31HHEENR
BEN A @R o BIZE20174F
3A31H - EHEAH A RI#ET
KR S WD kAR X
%o

(iii)

ARBRTEER@BELE
N AR A Bt il o

(iv)
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D) 4. BEAEXRZ (&)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) FEEEASNHH
Remuneration for key management personnel of AEBWEEEEABSHH (T
the Group, excluding amounts paid to the directors BEKFE1(@MIEENE SR
of the Company as disclosed in Note 11(a), is as NAIEEHIA) AT
follows:

2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FE&T

Salaries, allowances and benefits e EAREYET
in kind 2,363 1,455

35. MATERIAL INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN 35 EE=ENXS THRSHUWE AR

TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR o

CONTRACTS

Except as disclosed in Note 33 to the consolidated AR E ISR M 33T BEE I - 1
financial statements, no contracts of significance to ERNTMBAT I AN T ESE
which the Company’s subsidiaries was a party and in NEENEETENEh EES SR
which a director of the Company or an entity connected BHEAESNE KRS AN EE BAHE
with a director had a material interest, whether directly SRS R IR G o

or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the
financial year.

140\ BCI Group Holdings Limited mFI&EBR QA

N



36.

NOTE SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

(b)

Major non-cash transactions

During the years ended 31 May 2018 and 2017,
the Group recognised additional provision of
reinstatement to the clubs and restaurants of
HK$650,000 and nil respectively.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ® KW

31 May 2018 201855H31H

36. GmEBEERERME

(a)

FEFRERS

REZE2018%F k201745 H31H
IEFE  ANEBEGREmRERED
REIME 1S B 5 R 1#52650,000
BILRE -

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) RMETBRAELENEEYHIER
financial activities
The table below detail changes in the Group's TRFMLAEEREEBME
liabilities from financing activities, including both EHNBEEEZE (RRERERIER
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from TEY) MEEDMEEANE
financing activities are liabilities, for which cash BEARSTEERIARKES
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified MEfERASENGEEES
in the Group's consolidated statement of cash MEXRDHEAMETEMER
flows from financing activities. ERMEMBE-
Bank Total liabilities
Borrowings from financing
(Note 27) activities
BITER BEITHMEE
(Ktat27) MEBE
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 June 2017 R2017F6 A1H - -
Changes from cash flows: ReEnELE:
Proceeds from new bank loans FTIRTTERATIS5RIE 30,550 30,550
Interest paid BAF A (285) (285)
30,265 30,265
Changes on fair value: NP EES:
Other changes: Hes):
Interest expense FEMAZ 285 285
Total other changes H & E)asE 285 285
As at 31 May 2018 R2018%5A31H 30,550 30,550
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372 SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 37
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated
statements of financial position relate to the following
categories of financial assets and financial liabilities.

RERBINEREERERNEE
M=
RAMBIRAREIEMERA NS
MEENERBEEMNAR-

2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables: B R EWGRIA |
Trade receivables, deposits and EHREWFIE Ee &k
other receivables Hoh FE U RIR 14,684 10,221
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEBER
profit or loss TRLEE 19,990 =
Amount due from a related company FE U B R SRIE 82 176
Cash and cash equivalents RERRSEEY 33,508 60,672
Restricted bank deposits IR R TI7 3K 2,146 =
70,410 71,069
Financial liabilities SRAE
Measured at amortised cost: W SEN AT = -
Trade and other payables B 5 N EAM R IR 11,934 13,839
Bank Borrowings RITEK 30,667 =
42,601 13,839
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ® KW

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's financial assets that derive directly from
its operations are trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, amount due from a related company and
cash and cash equivalents. Principal financial liabilities of
the Group include trade and other payables, and amounts
due to related parties. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the Group's operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate
risk. The Group does not enter into or trade financial
instruments for speculative purposes.

(a) Currency risk

The Group mainly operated in Hong Kong with
most of the transactions settled in Hong Kong
dollars and did not have significant exposure to
risk resulting from changes in foreign currency
exchange rates.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss that are denominated in a currency other
then functional currency of the operations to
which they relate. The currencies giving rise to the
risk are primarily United States dollars.

At 31 May 2018, one of the Group's borrowing
are denominated in the functional currency of the
entity taking out the loan or, in the case of group
entities whose functional currency is Hong Kong
dollars, in either Hong Kong dollars or United
States dollars. Given this, management does not
expect that there will be any significant currency
risk associated with the Group’'s borrowings.

The Group's financial risk management policy
seeks to ensure that adequate resources are
available to manage the above risks and to create
value for its shareholders.

38.

31 May 2018 201855H31H

B Rk EE
AEEEEREEENCREERSE S
FEUWFRIE « e R E M ERGRIE « FEIR
B AR FUEARIRE MRS EEY -
AEBENETEZERHEEBREES LEAM
R R BB TR - LES
MEEFZERAASERHEEEES -

AEESRTAMELANEERRAE
ERR - RBESRAR LA ERR - A
SEVEITUHEE SR T AAERK
R

(a) E¥ER
REFBFEREBELEEL T
REBD X ZHABTTEE »
45 TH] B2 (AR 1N i R 48 ) 1 8 B
K E A

AEEMHEBENEEERREE
KB NERGEEBBHIIRE
BRI EEIENEQFE
FRARENEREE - XTRE
ZBHABRNE

M2018F5A31H » KEFHF
—BERANERERNEE
BB SR EERMNINGEE
B R E TT 0 BII LAY Tk £ T AT
B -HENIL EEEL AL
#5517 72 1 {r £ AN £2 [ /9 {8 5K 4R
BEENEERE o

AEENTHERABREERRE
EEFRAREERAIARER
LatER - AR ERAIEEE-
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group
will not be able to meet its obligations associated
with its financial liabilities. The Group is exposed
to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of
trade payables, accruals and other payables,
and amounts due to related parties, and also in
respect of its cash flow management. The Group's
objective is to maintain an appropriate level of
liquid assets to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major
banks and financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer terms.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group during the years ended 31 May 2018 and
2017 and are considered to have been effective in
managing liquidity risks.

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rates at the end
of the reporting period.
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MRRRER (&)
(b) fFERER

(c)

EFERBRESRTIAHFIR
EREMTANGRETER
ETMERAKERIUBKER
H R -

RBESRR
mBEE AR RAEERRE
BUESBBERBEENHE
2o AKEBEHEHREEESR
5008 - At &R R AR
I8~ A BREE DT SR A MR SR
EEENRBECAR - AEE
SEEBEZRBDEEKF A
MERBREPRNRBESS
sk o

AEENBRRASEREREA
RBEHRBHESHFR  BRER
RAHRACHEREETRRITR
TREBRHETENAERE
BE - meE RS R
BE®mRe

AREBREE2018F 20174
SANHIEFE—HERBREDE
SEER TR ABBBERRR
BEeEBRETE S ET A

TRAMASREEBABOF
HANHR - TRIRBESRAE
MARBRRTRE (ERAEE
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FTEEMABEMNIHANE
RIBEEKBH - TREHFE
RAGRERE - WHERERS
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38.

39.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
(c) Liquidity risk (CONT'D)

31 May 2018 201855H31H

38. BBRKRER (&)

(c)

Total contractual
undiscounted

REBESER (&)
More than one

Within one year year but less

Carrying amount cash flow  orondemand than two years
ENRERRS —ERg BB-F
REE RELE REX BARWE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT

At 31 May 2018 M201855431R
Trade and other payables B 5 R AR A 11,934 11,934 10,757 1177
Bank Borrowings RITER 30,667 30,667 30,667 -
42,601 42,601 41,424 1177

At 31 May 2017 12017654318
Trade and other payables B o REMERFR 13,839 13,839 12,539 1,290

(d) Interest rate risk (d) FI=EpkE

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group's bank deposits bear floating
interest rates. The Group has no cash flow or fair
value interest rate risk as there are no borrowings
which bear fixed or floating interest rates.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value

hierarchy (Note 5):

As at 31 May 2018
Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss

— Listed debts
securities

Level 1
FE1R
HK$°000
FET
720185531 H
BAFEFTA
B S
==
— EWER
B 19,990

MERBRFEEETAERAFE
HEEREAT SN EEFHM
BRI © AR BRIRTTIFK
WEBMERE - R AKEL
BB E SO B A RF B E
R BARELERSRELD
FEMRER -

39. AFERE
TREJIRIBAFESR (H5E5) 85
BRAFENRN S BT AT :

Level 2
E21
HK$°000
FET

Level 3 Total
FE3K st
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET

- 19,990

2018 Annual Report 4§ /145

7/



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e YRR W

31 May 2018 201855 431H

39. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT'D) 39.

There have been no significant transfers between levels
1 and 2 in the reporting period. There were no financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 May 2017

40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40.

The Group's primary objective when managing capital is
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and maximising the return to stakeholders.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group actively and regularly reviews the capital
structure and makes adjustments to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic conditions. The Group
monitors its capital structure on the basis of debt to
equity ratio.

The debt to equity ratio at reporting date was as follows:

DNFEFE (8)

REREEARE » 551 M2/ 2 B 1T (E
AIEARER - N2017FE5A310 - &
BN EYERNSMTE-

arABREE
AEBERARNEEENRRESE
BB AN R RREREN D
% -

up
O]

RERUHBEARRE  AEERE
ERRRIKNORESE  ARREE
BAR BOIHMBRAHEEENRDE
%%O

AEERGEHEHNEANRE LTHEE

RERAN BB FEEALRE - AEE
RIBEBE G REREERRE -

RifxE B BEER RS R T

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Bank Borrowings RITER 30,667 =
Total equity B 41,574 67347
Debt-to-equity ratio B ERL = 1:1.4 N/A i
41. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 41. ZEFBHRR

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27
August 2018.
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A summary of the results and of the liabilities of the Group for
the last four year financial years, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements in this annual report and the

prospectus, is set out below:

Financial Summary

i

BT 7 SR A O PO B OB R B
BEE DB E A ERANER LR A8
RRBIBRETR

RESULT £
Year ended 31 May
EZESAMALEE
2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20185 20174 20164 20154
FET FET FET FEr
Revenue Y gs 85,343 96,164 88,870 67387
Finance income BE WA 505 - - -
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAR (17,610) (19,117) (18,172) (13,300)
Other income and gains H g A Rz 377 73 557 432
Property rentals and related MERS RBBERAY
expenses (25,180) (22,975) (20,919) (16,066)
Advertising and marketing & RiisHER T
expenses (14,094) (11,915) (11,709) (11,278)
Employee benefits expenses (B E/@AFA (27,244) (18,311) (13,068) (7,656)
Depreciation e (4,672) (4,253) (4,199) (3,472)
Listing expenses isiilab3 - (15,532) - -
Fair value change on financial R AF(EF ABZANEE
assets at fair value through BENFEE
profit or Loss (446) - - -
Other expenses HipFx (20,639) (13,064) (10,953) (7.478)
Finance cost BE R (285) - - -
(Loss)/profit before income tax B PS5 32 il
expense (E518) /& A (23,945) (8,930) 10,407 8,569
Income tax expense Frfsfi (1,828) (847) (2,023) (1,470)
(Loss)/profit and total FRN(EBR) Saflkz2E
comprehensive income for Nk
the year (25,773) (9,777) 8,384 7.099
(Loss)/profit and total IATALEGEER
comprehensive income for (B8) RF k2R
the year attributable to: N R
— Owners of the Company — RREHEB A (25,135) (9,513) 8,384 7099
- Non-controlling interests — IRt (638) (264) = =
(25,773) (9,777) 8,384 7099

2018 Annual Report & R /147



N

Financial Summary

BB E

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

BEEHAE

Year ended 31 May

BE5A31BLLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201845 20174 20164 20154
FEIT FEIT FET FET
Total assets BEE 87,407 85,384 39,680 30,014
Total liabilities BafE (45,833) (18,037) (27706) (26,424)
Total equity e 41,574 67,347 11,974 3,590
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